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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements
of Darjeeling Organic Tea Estates Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31st, 2021 and its loss, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) The company has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings
to the banks, financial institutions and lenders of External
Commercial Borrowings. Details of Default with Overdue Installments
and overdue interest amounting to Rs.187.75 crores have been
reported in Note No.16, 20 & 22. of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statement as on 31st March 2021. The Cash Credit & Term Loan
exposure in UCO bank is NPA since June 2019 & the same from
Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) and the term loan from State




b)

d)
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Bank of India also identified as NPA during the course of audit
amounting to Rs.91.78 crores, Rs.82.63 crores and Rs. 7.42 crores
respectively as disclosed in Note No. 16, 20 & 22 read with note No.
45(e).

The Company has defaulted in Statutory Dues and Liabilities which
have been reported in point no. vii of Annexure A to this report. The
TDS Returns for the part of the FY 2020-21 has not been filed by the
Company. The resultant liability due to non-filing of the aforesaid
returns have not been determined & provided for by the Management
as on 31-03-2021. So to that extent, the current liabilities and loss
are understated.

Balance Confirmation from Trade Creditors, Trade Receivables, Loans
and Advances given and Deposits as on 31-03-2021 as well as regular
ledger reconciliation for transactions during the current financial year
of Vendors and Customers has not been provided for our verification.
The company has sent request letters for balance confirmations to
various parties, but none of them has confirmed the balances.

The Company did not provide unpaid leave encashment as per the
actuarial valuation as recommended in Ind AS 19 in the Standalone
Ind As Financial Statements as on 31.03.2021. However, as stated by
the Management to us the Company has a policy as per which at the
end of the financial year the outstanding leave is fully paid to
employees other than managerial staffs on cash basis and at the end
of the year there was no liability to the managerial staffs as it was
relinquished by them under a cost cutting measure owing to
pandemic situation.

The company had allotted on the basis of Right Issue 33,93,656 zero
coupon Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value of
Rs. 10/= each along with a premium of Rs. 15.17 per share,
aggregating to Rs. 8,54,18,320/= to the existing shareholders who
have subscribed the right issue in proportion of their shareholding.
The company was in default in submitting FC-GPR return to the
appropriate authority and so far the time limit of refund of excess
share application money received is concern it failed to follow the
prescribed regulation under the FEMA. The management clarifies that
due to change in AD Bank the matter got delayed and the FCGPR filed
online is pending acceptance by the AD Bank.

Compliance of Sec 188 of the Companies Act relating to Provision for
Doubtful Debts of related parties to the extent of Rs. 9.43 crores, the
specific resolution of the Board approving the said provisioning was
passed on 26.02.2021.




N.Chatterjee & Associates

g) The Other Current Assets includes an unmoved balance in Input VAT
Account amounting to Rs. 0.72 crores for which no details could be
made available to us. So in our opinion, this should have been
written off and to that extent the current assets have been overstated
and loss has been understated.

h) The company has signed during the year a Memorandum of
understanding with D K Industries (P) Ltd. as transferee and
Ratanpur Land & Tea Estate (P) Ltd. as confirming party to transfer
the ownership of Ratanpur Tea Estate, which was not yet mutated in
the name of the company, and the value of assets was shown as
Assets held for Sale” as per the Point No. 3.4 of Significant
Accounting Policies of the company. We refer Note No. 49 in this
regard. The company has signed an Agreement to transfer the
Leasehold Right to Fine Tea Pluck LLP as transferee during the year
to transfer the right of Nurbong T E (consisting of Simring,
Shivakhola (Gitangay) and Nurbong Divisions) and the value of assets
has been shown as “Assets held for Sale” the Point No. 3.4 of
Significant Accounting Policies of the company. We refer Note No. 49
in this regard.

i) The company also transferred its receivable accounts of Bansal Agro
Beverages Pvt Ltd of Rs. 8.27 crores and Dreamview Commodeal Pvt.
Ltd. of Rs. 25.80 crores to the Bhumya Pvt. Ltd. (Drs) against which
neither confirmation from either party was produced before us nor
was special resolution u/s 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 passed by
the Company.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.

Information other than the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Management & Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include
the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The Information included in the Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of the Auditors’ Report.
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Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
necessary actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements ‘Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements

The Company’s Management &Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, cash flows & Changes in
Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies ;making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management &
Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Management & Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i)) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
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cease to continue as a going concern. In spite of the fact that UCO Bank,
one of the financial creditors of the Company have initiated insolvency
petition against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 before the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench
for non-repayment of their dues, the Company’s management is
confident on the preparation of financial statement as a going concern in
view of their utmost endeavor in negotiating restructuring scheme with
the bank management. Refer point no. 2.1 of Accounting Policy.

e« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

e The Company has disclosed the risk and impact of COVID 19 pandemic
on the Tea Industry and specifically on the company. It has also
mentioned the steps and measures to counter the impact and has also
explained the basis for Going Concern assumption in light of the
developments. Refer Note 45(d).

* Due to worldwide outbreak of COVID - 19 pandemic, Government of India
as well as Government of West Bengal & Assam has declared lockdown
against physical movement and travel from one location to another.
Moreover, social distancing norms have been prescribed as a preventive
measure. In light of this, the Statutory Audit have been conducted
remotely through internet and based on electronic copies of
documentation, vouchers and bills. We could not verify the original copies
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and have relied upon the electronic copies furnished to us by the
management. We could not physically verify the Cash Balance of different
locations and have relied upon the Management Certificate furnished to
us as on 31-03-2021 which the management has confirmed that they
have verified the same. We could not physically verify the Inventory as
well as the Property Plant and Equipment and have relied upon
corroborative documentary evidence to the extent available. These are
limitations in our process of conducting the said Audit.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

The management has made an assessment of realizable value of it's
property during the current financial year and found no material
dispersion from the amount of its carrying value in the Balance Sheet and
hence the provision for impairment loss of its property plant and
equipment was not necessary in the financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ,we give in Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order , to
the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations ,
except for the matters stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph , which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

(c) The Standalone balance sheet, the Standalone statement of Profit and
Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone
Changes in Equity & standalone statement of the cash flows dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Except for the matters stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the
extent applicable for the Company.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on March 31, 2021, taken on record by the board of
directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure ‘B’ to this report.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us;

a. Regarding detailed reporting upon the status of the pending litigation by
and against the company which would impact in its Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements we refer Note No. 34A & Accounting Policy point no.
2.1 of the attached financial statement.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

c. The Reporting point on whether there has been delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company is not applicable based on information
and explanations provided to us.

For & On Behalf of
N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES/___

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 317106E

Place: Kolkata ™ %‘ | _.___g.
Dated: 17th September, 2021 ‘)&
N. CHATT PADHYA
PROPRIEfDR

Membership No. 053249
ICAI UDIN: 21053243 AAAACT AT
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Chartered Accountants
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Howrah- 711 102
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Date: 17th September, 2021

ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date in
respect to statutory audit of DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES
PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2021, we report that:

i

(@)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained records to show particulars of fixed
assets. However this year improvements noted except for Assam
Gardens in the format of record maintenance & in contents by
showing quantitative details, sub-location & Asset Ildentification
number of such fixed assets.

Excepting for Assam Gardens we have received documentation
regarding the physical verification of fixed assets in a phased
manner by respective garden management. However, management
has confirmed that for Assam Gardens such verification has been
conducted during the year and no material discrepancies have been
found.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the
Company, the original title deeds of immovable properties held in the
name of the Company are kept under mortgage with the Banker and
same could not be verified by us. Tea Estate Land and Factory at
Jamguri & Ratanpur that have been capitalised in the books are not
held in the name of the Company as informed to us. It has also been
informed to us by the Management that the Original Title Deeds of
Jamguri Tea Estate, Hrithik Tea Estate and Bought Leaf Factory are
being kept as lien by a Bank against the loan outstanding for a
different Promoter Company.

ii. As informed to us, the physical verification of the inventories has been
conducted by the management at some of the locations at intervals
during the year& there are no material shortage / excess identified by
the management during such verification process worth adjustment.
None of the structured Reports on physical verification was produced
before us.
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iii. The Register to be maintained under Sec 189 of the Companies Act 2013

iv.

was made available for our verification. However , the Company has not
granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other
parties that should have been covered in the register to be maintained
under section 189 of the Act , except for the following cases a) Bhumya
Tea Company Private Limited Rs.1.42 crores b) Darjeeling Beverages
Rs.0.78 crores c¢) Bhumya Pvt Ltd. Rs. 82.99 Crores d) Ambootia Tea
Exports Private Limited — Rs.17.70 crores e) Ratanpur Land & Tea
Estates Private Limited Rs.2.18 crores and other cases reported in
Related Party Transaction disclosures. The information as regards rates
of interest if any , security and repayment period and repayment
amount of principal and interest are not made available to us. However,
out of above provision for doubtful debts has already been created in the
last year against Advances given to Darjeeling Beverages Pvt Ltd and
Bhumya Pvt Ltd.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act, with respect to the loans & investments made and the
guarantees provided except in case of Advances made to Ambootia Tea
Exports (P) Ltd. of Rs.16.88 crores (gross) & Ratanpur Land and Tea
Estates (P) Ltd amounting to Rs.3.10 crores (gross) under the head Other
Current Assets. 13(a). No special resolution to grant such advance has
been made available to us. No interest has been charged on these loans
which is not consistent with the provisions of Sce 186(7). Refer Note No.
35 and 42.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company did not receive any deposits covered under section
73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under with regard to
deposits accepted from the public during the year except for the matters
stated below:-

Loan from Non Corporate entities:- Loan received from Ambootia Welfare
Trust of Rs.98.30 lacs and from Hector Beverages Private Limited -
Advances from Customer outstanding as on 31-03-2021 amounting to
Rs.0.38 crores & Rs.0.001 Crores from Packaging System & Services,
which has not been adjusted for a period of 365 days which comes
within the purview of definition of public deposit. Also excess Share
Application Money Received Rs. 9.80 lacs not refunded within 15 days of
completion of 60 days from the date of receipts.

. The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records

under section 148(1) of the Act, for the Company. We have broadly
reviewed such accounts and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the rules and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained but
no detail examination of such records and accounts have been carried
out by us.
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vii. According to the information and explanations given to us according to
the books and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion,

(a) the Company is not regular in depositing tax and returns with
appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues/liabilities of
Provident Fund, Professional Tax, stamp duty, service Tax, Corporate
dividend tax and Income tax (Tax Deducted at Source), VAT & CST&
Cess.

According to the information and explanations given to us, following

undisputed dues as stated above are outstanding as at March 31, 2021:-:

Name of the Statute Natudrsc(;f the Amount (Rs.) ?oognttor;‘;::ré?
The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous April?
ot ; pril’20 to
Provisions Act, 1952& | Provident Fund 3,47,40,582/- M
arch21
Assam Tea Employees
Provident Fund
The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous Barliss to Asiil
Provisions Act, 1952& | Provident Fund | 9,97,40,345/- P
2020.
Assam Tea Employees
Provident Fund
The West Bengal Labour | Labour Welfare Relaged b5
Welfare Fund Act, 1974 Fund 92,016/- Degember
2020
TDS Due
undseerc:iz:::lnus Due relates to
Income Tax Act 1961 d 1,59,71,320/- FY 2019-20 &
: emanded by Pri :
Income Tax oF period,
Department
TDS Due Period 1 Aot
Income Tax Act 1961 under various | 2,72,77,837/- | "0 3{1(
Scotions March,2021
TDS Due .
Income Tax Act 1961 under various 67,19,398/- Ear]:er W
; April’2020
sections
West Bengal State Tax on
Professions, Trades, Professional 1,29,048/- Period Dec'20
callings and Employments Tax LR to March’21
Act 1979
Assam Professions,
Trades, Callings and Professional 4,54,241/- Period Aug’l5
Employment Taxation Act, Tax Y to March’21
1947
Goods & Service Tax Act — Goods &
West Bengal &Assam Service Tax These dues are
Gross Dues reported prior For West payable to
to set off against eligible Bengal 3,01,52,768/- | Bureau against
input. For Assam 33,37,994/- demand.
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West Bengal VAT Act West Bengal 48,008 - :n::{ ;g
CST ACT VAT ' Pty
19-20
Income Tax Act 1961 Dividend Tax 4,34,105/- Prior to 19-20

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax and cess as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on
account of dispute except for the following:

Name of the ma—— P —— Forum where
Statute pending
Dues (Rs. )
Provident Fund - 78,00,000 PF Authorities
Empl Happy Valley TE
IMpLcyees (Rs.60,00,000) has been
Provident Fund ' )
kept deposited with the,
Act L
Authorities.
For ~ AY  2018-19Demand of Rs 1.37 cr|CIT (Appeal)
Income Tax Act “L“’té‘?" E/ s142(1) kajsed, TDS & Gratuity
receive on . N &
1961 17.11.20 foresst Pos,, In  time 1ot
considered, documents on
prior pd item, PF penalty|
to be considered.
Income Tax
Income Tax Act Demand out of
1961 Scrutiny
Assessment order
u/s 143(3) AY
2017-18 164.648 crores|CIT (Appeal)
Income Tax
Demand out of
Income Tax Act Scrutiny
1961 Assessment order
u/s 143(3) AY
2016-17 7.77 lakhs|CIT (Appeal)




Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax Act
1961

Income Tax Act
1961

Demand out of
Rectification Order
154 Ay 2015-16

Income Tax
Demand out of
Scrutiny
Assessment order
u/s 143(3) AY
2014-15

Demand out of
Rectification Order
154 Ay 2013-14

Demand out of
Revision Order263
Ay 2012-13
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520.51 lakhs|

71.85 lakhs

245.05 lakhs

92.45 lakhsl

CIT (Appeal)

cIY (Appeal)
Order  reduced
the demand to be
given effect.

CIT (Appeal)

Appeal effect
Pending

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanations provided to us, the company has defaulted
in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the banks & financial
institutions. Details of Default with Overdue Instalments and overdue
interest amounting to Rs.180.24 crores have been reported in Note No.22
of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement as on 31st March
2021.Exact period of default is not ascertainable from external
confirmations to us.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the year nor is
anything outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

Company has raised fund from ECB, where interest due has not been
serviced. Repayment of principal of ECB has moratorium till 14-Dec-

2021.
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ix. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on
our overall examination of the books of accounts, we report that the
company has utilized the Term Loan for the specified purpose during the
year as evident from the information made available to us. Furthermore,
the company has neither raised moneys through initial public offer nor
through further public offer during the year. Hence, the related reporting
does not apply.

x. As informed to us, there has been no fraud on or by the Company
noticed during the period under review.

xi. The information as regards whether the Company has paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act is not applicable to private limited companies

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable
Ind AS except for matters stated in point “” of the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph stated above.

xiv.According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment nor private placement of shares during
the current financial year. But the company had allotted on the basis of
Right Issue 33,93,656 zero coupon Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/= each along with a premium of Rs. 15.17
per share, aggregating to Rs. 8,54,18,320/= to the existing shareholders
who have subscribed the right issue in proportion of their shareholding.
Furthermore, the company has utilized the fund for the purpose it was
so raised.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them.




N.Chatterjee & Associates

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For & On Behalf of
N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATE/S-—
Chartered Accountants

FRN 317106E
Place: Kolkata ¢ e T |
Dated: 17t September, 2021 e Lq-‘que}kje- ~ »}i “
par- .

N. CHATTOPADHYAY

PROPRIETOR

Membership No. 053249
ICAI UDIN : 2L053243AAAACT R332
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date, in respect to the internal financial control
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act, of
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PVT LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2021, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
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reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

QUALIFIED OPINION

Except for the matters stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph stated
below , in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
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internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by ICAL.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) We have reviewed internal controls deployed within the organization &
compliances and its effectiveness and in our opinion the assessment & control
by the respective control owners need to be further strengthened.

b) The IT based Accounting and Financial Reporting in Garden and Head office are
in different platforms and are not integrated by system process. In view of this,
the entire consolidation process at HO is virtually manual using MS excel, which
poses data integrity risk.

¢) The company complied with the provision of section 138(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 by appointing the internal auditor for the year under audit.

d) We have not come across any case of deviation in supemsory control over daily
cash book balances of gardens. Improvement on supervision of this area was
notable feature in the aforesaid process.

For & On Behalfof
N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN 317106E

Place: Kolkata kk“‘ e \\3_—“‘

Dated: 17t September, 2021

PROPRIETOR
Membership No. 053249
ICATUDIN: 2105324 9AARRACTAZY2
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2021

BEGB2TF45A314ES .

(In Rs.)
Asat As at
Note No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
A ASSETS
1 Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 3,81,19,10,116 4,18,86,83,038
Capital Work-in-Progress 5 40,88,118 60,19,808
Intangible Assets 4A 90,71,753 67,69,782
Financial Assets
(1) Other Financial Assets 6 25,89,192 2443592
Other Non-Current Assets 7 45,04,881 2,21,83,755
Total Non- Current Assets 3.83,21,64,060 4,22,60,99974
2 Current Assets
Current Tax Assets 8 1,12,51,078 49.36,615
Inventonies 9 28,14,45,732 26,91,64.449
Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants 10 2,21,81,089 -
Financial Assets
) Loans 11 24.65,218 49 B6 832
(u) Trade Receivables 1A 4,02,92,349 2,73,38,991
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 3,30,61,263 1,25.75.877
Other Current Assets 13 11,61,88,180 9,25.75.298
50,68,84,919 41,15,78.062
Non Current Asset held for sale 49 32,06,89,313 -
Total Current Assets 82,75,74.232 41,15,78,062
Total Assets 4165.9'?2592 4!63276.78I03?
B EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 32,85,38,470 32,85.38,470
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature 14 3,39,36,560 -
Other Equity 15 (89,99,42,355) (14,08,20451)
Total Equity (53,74,67,325) 18.77.18.019
2 Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabalities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,68,81 54,582 1,60,04,08,942
Provisions 17 34,04,44,078 3291,25.555
Other Non Current Liabilities 18 29,53,950 2,78,49,064
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 19 45,42,16,620 37,22 41 201
Total Non- Current Liabilitics 2,48 57.69.229 2329624, 762
3 Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 20 48,09,22,637 69,65,02,114
(i1) Trade Payables 21 10,34,95,784 8,66,46,732
(i11) Other Financial Liabilities 22 1,46,99,91,814 67,88,61,115
Other Current Liabilities 23 64,27,72,210 64,40,71,353
Provisions 24 - -
Current Tax Liabilites (net) 25 1,42,53,943 1.42,53,943
Total Current Liabilities 2,71,14,36,388 2,12.03,35,257
Total Equity & Liabilities 65,97 92 4.63.76.78,037
Significant Accounting Policies and other information 1-3
Other notes to the financial statements 34-50
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
As per our Report of even date
For N, CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES = For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
ICAI Firm Registration No. 317106E R‘”‘M M TN‘[G.S Vo M
\k‘-: ‘),k = l —, / CAUBEAGERIMER Johannes Biemond Tobias von Glene Lot
Niladri Chullop-dhyly { i (Director) {Director)
Proprietor (DIN; 07705760) (DIN: 08996812)
Membership No, 053249
UDIN : 110631H9M\AAU 332
Place : Kolkata Rajan Singh Dpeungasd by
Date : 17th September, 2021 (Company Secretary) f,?‘,, S‘.-,,’A,
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2021

(InRs)
Note No. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 315t
31st March, 2021 March, 2020
1 INCOME
Revenue from Operations 26 TLI1,20,104 1,09,55,45,991
Other Income 27 15,05,79,441 16,34,764
Taotal Income 86,17,00,545 1,09,71,80,754
I EXPENSES
Purchases 14,83,77.706 245927149
Changes in Inventories of Fimshed Goods 28 (1,22,81,284) 10,96,73 286
& Stores & Spares
Employee Benefits Expense 29 73,66,49,580 79,38,11 569
Finance Costs 30 28,05,55,671 24.95.80,321
Depreciation and amortizalion expense 4 &4A 6,46,11,702 16,18,37.312
Other Expenses 3l 40,57,51,046 1,84 24 48 881
Tatal Expenses 1,62,36,64,422 3,40,32,78,519
111 PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX & EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (76,19,63,877) [ILSU,EO,‘)?,?BS}
Exceptional Items 1A - (2,73,49,90,354)
IV PROFIT/ LOSS) BEFORE TAX (76,19,63,877) (5!04!10!88'] IBI
Tax expense 32
Current tax - -
Income Tax for earlier years - -
Deferred tax 7,33,08,155 (1,22,71,12,986)
Total Tax expense 7,33,08,155 (1,22,71,12,986)
V PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX (83.,52,72,032) (3.81,39,75,132)
V1 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 33
i Items that will not be classified to profit and loss 3,33,35.630 (5,32,01,714)
1 Income tax relating to items that will not be (86,67,264) 1,38.32 446
classified to profit and loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income For The Year 2,46,68,366 (3,93,69,268)
VIl TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR LS_I.M,BS,MS] (3,85,33.44 401)
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE 47
(Face value of Rs 10/- cach)
Basic (Rs.) (25.42) (116.09)
Diluted (Rs.) (23.43) (116.09)
Significant Accounting Policies and other information 1-3
Other notes to the financial statcments 34-50
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
As per our Report of even date L
For N. CHATTERJEE & ASSOCIATES I,""' For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants { DacuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
ICAI Firm Rtgistration No. 3]’?1!}5!2 » ,
‘ Rembert Biemand Tobias von, Slumek

Niladri Chattopadhyay (Director) (Director)
Proprietor i (DIN: 07705760) (DIN: 08996812)
Membership No. 053249

UDIN:240G632\ SAAAACTIAZRL
Place : Kolkata

Date : 17th September, 2021

V‘(’ l}» Lhkm; \__, S IM '&: CIOREMBEFP Fohannes Biemond Tolbtas ok GTERERS4 18-

Raj Siash DocuSigned by:
an Sing| ; ¢
(Company Secretary) E‘?’"’ w
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(I Rs)

For the Year Ended 315t March, 2021

For the Year Ended 315t March, 2020

Profit before tax & after Exceptional Trems (76,19.63,877) (3,04,10,88,118)
Adjustment for:
Dep om & p 6,46,11,702 16,18,37,312
Impairment Lass - 2,73,50,74,074
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (18,85,697) (1,78,428)
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 3,60,756 1,92,88,902
Loss due to Quality Rejection 29,585,079 10,60,788
Provision for Doubtful Debts 9,43,40,813 95,74,69,068
Pravision for Doubtful Capital Advances = 21,59,233
Provision for Doubtful Ocher Non Current Advances - 19,05,78,573
Provision for Doubtful Advance Given to Suppliers - 10,06,267
Provision for Doubtful Other Current Advances - 30,90,77.999
Finance cost 28,05,55,6T1 24,95 80,321
Recovery of Doubtful Debts (2,12,52,575)
Changes in fair value of biological asscis (2,21,81,099) 213,12,082
Other comprehiensive income 33335630 (5.32,01,714)
43,08,70.280 4.59,50.64,477
Operating profit before Working Capital changes (33,10,93,596) (44,6023 642)
Adjustments for Working Capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in non current other financial assets (1,45,600) (17.468)
Decrease/(increase) i other non current assets 1,76,78,874 10.48,60,054
Dy ' ) in (1,22,81,283) 10,96,73,286
Decrease/(increase) in Loans 25,21,614 9,589,342
Decrease/(increase) in current financial assets
Trade receivables (11,02,79,250) (49.71,61,525)
Other financial assets - -
Decrease/{increase) in other current assets (2.36,12,882) (1,32,47,868)
Increase/{decrense) in nen current provisions 1,13,18,523 B53,07.413
Increase/(decrease) in non current labilities (2,48,95,115) (71,94,673)
I Ad in current fi ial liabil
Trade payables 1,68,49,052 (2,69,57,343)
Other financial liabilities 79,11,30,699 23,91 08,844
Increase/{ decrease) in other current lisbilities (12.99.143) 40.86,20,209
! /{decrease) in short term - -
66,69,85,489 40,79,80,513
Cash generated from operationg 33,58,91,893 (3,80.43,129)
(Tax paid) / refund received (net) 163,14,462) (14,19,
Net cash from operating activities 31,95,77.430 (3,94,62,329)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, CWIP 1.15,90,969 (2.75,12.573)
Sale proceeds of Property, Plant and Equipment, CWTP 42.06,538 9,28,38,510
Net cash generated / (used) in investing netivities 1,57,97,807 6,53,25,937
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/{decrease) from long term borrowings 8,77.45.640 2438,02,140
Increase/{decrease) i short term borrowangs (21,55,79,477) (1,44,96 243)
Issue of Share Capital 8.54,18,321 -
Dividend Paid (25,08,697)
Finance cost !M.'N.”S! [24,93‘80.321 !
Net cash rom financing aclivilies (32,48,89 551) (2,27,83,121)
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 2.04,85.386 30,80,484
Net Increase / (-) Decrease in Cash and Bank balances
Balance at the end of the year 3,30,61,263 1,25,75877
Balance at the beganming of the year 1,25, 75,877 94,95.393
Net changes in Cash and Bank balances 2,04,85,386 3080484
Notes:
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows.
The accompanying notes form an integral purt of the financial statemenis
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
As per our Report of even date
gﬂg:gx: & ASSOCIATES DocuSigned h:;nr and on belall of the Board of Directors DocuSigned by:
ICAI Firm Registration No. 317106E Remlert Biemond 'Dh A% oL M
CA0BEAOCOTEMrt Johunnes Biemond Tobias von Glénde T eoet10
Niladri Chattopadhyay (Director) {Director)
Proprietor . (DIN: 07703760) (DIN 0B996812)
UDIN: 21053248
UDIN: 24
Place : Kolkata RERNCY Rajan Singh DocuSigned by:
Date : 17th September, 2321 (Company Secretary)

Rajore Singh
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Note No. 14)

DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(i Rs.)

Asat As at
315t March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Hal at the year b i 32,85,38,470 32,85,38.470
Changes in equity share l;ap)lal during the year - -
Balance at the year end 32,85,38.470 328538470
B. INSTRUMENTS ENTIRELY EQUITY IN NATURE (Refer Note No. 14)
As at at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Bal at the year beginni - -
Changes in preference share capnal duning the year 3.39.36.560 -
Balance at the year end 3,39,36,560 -
C. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Note No. 15)
For the period ended 315t March, 2021
Reserve & Surplus Citier Comprehonidve
Income
Particulars Total
Capital Securities Remeasurement of
Redemption Reserve Premium Copion Reserve - Retaloed Karmings defined benefit plan
Balance as at st April, 2020 1,59,00,000 5,04,88,73,011 16,35,56,212 (5,30,81,23,076) (6,10,26,597) (14,08,20,451)
Add : For the Year - . " (83,52,72,032) 2.46,68,366 (B1,06,03,665)
Add: On conversion of CCPS into equity shares - - - = = =
Add: Current Year Transfer (Equity) - 3,14,81,761 - - - 5,14.81,761
Add: Overcharged Depn in earlier year - - - - = 5
Less: Dividend payable on equity shares - - - - - -
Less: Dividend payable on preference shares - - - - = =
Less: Dividend distribution tax payable - - - - - -
Less: Amortized during the year - - - = & =
Less: Adjustment of Impairment Loss . =
Balance as at 315t March, 2021 1,59,00.000 5.!GIDJ.54.TTZ 16,35,56,212 (6,14.33.95,108) {lﬁliislls.ll_[ |89£9:42&551
For the vear ended 315t March, 2020
4 Reserve & Other Comprehensive
Particulare Surplus Income L
Capital Sccurities Remeasurement of
Redem ption Reserve Premium Laplal R B Retained Kavoings defined benefit plan
Balance as at Ist April, 2019 1,59,00,000 5,04,88,73,011 3,91,51,07,407 (1,49,12,05,140) (2,16,57,319) 746,70,17,949
Add : For the Year - - - (3,81,39,75,132) (3,93,69,268) (3,85,33,44,401)
Add: On conversion of CCPS into equity shares - - - - - -
Add: Current Year Transfer (Equity) - - - - - =
Add: Overcharged Depn in carhier year - - - - - =
Less: Dividend payable on equity shares = = = = = &
Less: Dividend payable on prefi shares = = = - = &
Less: Dividend distribution tax payabiz - - - - - -
Less: Amaortized during the year - - - - - -
Less: Adjustment of Imparment Loss (3,75,15,51,195) (3,75,15,51,195)
Balance as at J1st March, 2020 lg‘ﬁ‘llﬂlllllﬂll 5,04.88,73,011 1635.56,212 (530.81,23.076) (6.1 ulg_g.sg'n tll,ll&!l}dil !
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date -
Far N. CHATTERIEE & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors
Chartered Accountants DocuSigned by: DocuSianed by:
ICAI Firm Registraiion No. 317106E Rembert Bivmoand (
I dlrias wow
e WA Yo v
\Jk""- N Lo C1GBEI!8EIRW§.JM““MS Biemond ‘Tobias von EH’C?FFBENW'“
Nitudri Chuttopadiyay (Director) (Director)
Praprictor (DIN: 07705760) (DIN: DBO96812)

Membership No. 055249 -
vov: 240 8324900,

Place : Kolkata P‘C‘T‘ .*,-
Diate ;1 7th September, 2021

DocuSigned by:
Rajoar Singh

BEBB27F45A314E5.

Rajan Singh
(Company Secretary)
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

1 COMPANY INF

21

22

Darnjeeling Organie Tea Estates Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated in India on 13th January 2009. The Company is domiciled in India having its registered office at C/o Regus Grandeur Offices Private Limited,
PS Arcadia, 9th Floor, 4A Abanindra Nath Thakur Sarani, Kolkata — 700016 (shifted from 34A METCALFE STREET 7TH FLOOR, Kolkata 700 088 since 7th October' 2020) The Company 1s engaged n the Cultivation
and Manufacturing of Tea and other agricultural products.

of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Tnd AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The ac ing pelicies are applied i Iy o all the periods presented in the financial statements

The Company's financial performance has been adversely affected due to downturn of the tea industry, lack of working capital support from banks and operational issucs mainly because of increased cost of production and
adverse weather conditions. However, the Company could mitigate part of the increased cost through several cost reduction measures and increase in sales prices. The company has been facing severe working capital
constraints and external factors beyond the control of the Company. The liquidity issues faced by the Company are being discussed with the lenders and shareholders. The ¢ pany is exploring various fund raise options to
ease of liquidity ints on the company. Additivnally, the Company is taking various cost reduction measures which shall improve its operational efficiencies. The management is confident that the Company will be able
to generate sufficient cash flows through additional fund raise and profitable operations improving its net working capital position to discharge its short term and long term liabilities. Hence, financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis,

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division 11 of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the
nawre of products and the ume between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets ard hahilities.

The finarcial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which 1s the Company's functional currency.

Basis

The fimncizl statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis (which includ 1 deemea cost as per Ind AS 1017, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
(1), Certain finzrcial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

{ii) Defined benefits plans - Plan assets measured at fa. value
(iii) Certain Biological Assets (Including Unplucked Green leaves) - measured at Fair Vaive less cost to sell.

Al Ex ions from requirement of Other I

A-1] Decmed cost for Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has elected 10 measure all its Property, Plaat and Equipments at the Picvious GA AP carrying smount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.

=2 sin
The Company has not elected to apply IND AS 103- Busintss Combination , retrospectively to past businzss combination that are occurred before the date of transition to IND AS,
IA-3 ] Lease
The Compary has d the classification of each el as finance or operating leasc at the date of transition to Ind AS on the basis of the facts and circumstances existing as at that date.
1B] _Mandatory Exceptions from retrospective application
The Company has applied t::2 following exceptions to the retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under Ind AS 101,

DocuSigned by: DocusSigned by: DocuSigned by:

Remlert Biemend Toirias won. Aunck Rajon Singh
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DA

LING OR ICT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

24

1B-1] Estimatcs
On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in
those estimates. However, est that were required under Ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date

These are as under:
* Fair Valuation of financial instrument.
+ Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

* Determination of the disc d value for financial instruments carned at amortised cost
« Biological asset measured at Fair Value less Cost to Sell

B-2 assification and measurement of Financial Asset
The classification of financial assets to he measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss is made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed on the date of
transition to Ind AS.
1€]_New and amended standards adopted by the Company
JC-1] IND AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 was notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and it is applicable for annual reporting penods beginning on or after | April 2019. The Company also owns 14 tea estates in Darjeeling under long term lease.
The impact of this AS 15 not substantial with regard to the size of the company and it does not matenally impact the financial statement of the company and hence the management has decided not to follow this Ind AS.

KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical expenience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed Lo be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmised prospectively.

Infermation aboul critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and ptions that have the most signiticant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are
included in the following notes:

2.4.1 Defined Benefit Plans

The cost and the present value of the defined benefil gratuity plan are determined using actuanial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future.
These include the determination of appropriate discount rate, estimating future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is

highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All p are reviewed at each reporting date. For further details refer Note 40
s n i
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is | using valuation techniques. The inputs to

these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 44 for further disclosures,

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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3.1

243D iati ! i
Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment. Estimates may change due to technological develop competition, changes in market
conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and amortisation charges.

2.4.4 Provisi 1 Conti ~

Provisions and conuingencies are based on Management's best estimate of the habiliues based on the facts known at the Balance Sheet date.

2.4.5 Taxation

The Company is engaged in agricultural activities and accordingly, significant judgement is involved in determining the tax liability for the Company. Also there are many trar ions and calculations during the ordinary

course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Further judgement is involved in determining the deferred tax position on the balance sheet date.

ical

The fair value of Biological Assets is determined based on the Selling Price of Finished Goods less Cost of Sales and Manufacturing Cost.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition
Revenue 1s recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being received.

The specific recognition criteria described below are met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. In Case of Auction Sales, revenue is recognised on Completion of Auction and in case of consignment sales, revenue is recognised on receiving

information from the consignee.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. [t excludes sales tax, Value added tax (VAT), Goods and Service Tax, Trade
Discounts, Volume Rebates and Returns,

Interest Income
Interest Income is recognised on a ime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate
Revenue is recogmsed when the right to receive the payment is established by the reporting date.
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3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (i.e. as per Cost Model), if any. Cost comprises purchase price including import duties and
other non-refundable duties and taxes, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and other directly attributable cost for bringing the Assets to its present location and condition. Freehold Land is however carried at
Historical Cost.

Bearer Plants (comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees) which is used in the production or supply of agnculture produce and expected to bear produce for more than a period of twelve months are capitalized as a
part of Property, Plant & Equipment. The cost of Bearer Plant includes all cost incurred till the plants are ready for commercial harvest which includes the cost of land preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly
planted bushes until maturity, Bearer Plants are depreciated from the date when they are ready for commercial harvest

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item only when it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item/part can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss duning the period in which they are incurred.
When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance sheet are disclosed as "Capital Work-in-progress”. Immature bearer plants, including the cost incurred for procurement of new
seeds and maintenance of nurseries, are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress. Costs incurred for infilling including block infilling are generally recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Loss unless there is a significant increase in the yield of the sections, in which case such costs are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the respective sections,

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the asset received
or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up

The Assets which are held for Sale shall be reclassified to Current Assets only if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction (within one year) rather than through continuing use,

Depreciation and Amortization:-

Depreciation on the Company’s Fixed Assets has been charged on the following basis:

1) Depreciation on the fixed assets have been charged on the written down value method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013
In respect of the following assets, useful lives different from Schedule IT have been considered on the basis of technical evaluation, as under -

= Depreciation on Bearer Plants has been provided on Straight Line Basis at the rates determined considening useful lives of tea bushes of 75 Years to 150 Years. The Residual Value in case of Bearer Plants has been
considered to be 1% of Original Cost.

- Depreciation on Building has been provided on WDV Basis at the rates determined considening useful lives of 75 year. The Residual Value in case of Building has been considered to be 10% of Original Cost.
- Depreciation on Plant & Machinery has been provided on WDV Basis at the rates determined considening useful lives of 37 year.
- Depreciation on Motor Vehicles has been provided on WDV Basis at the rates determined considering useful lives of 10 year. The Residual Value in case of Building has been considered to be 3 09% of Oniginal Cost.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis,
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3.6

37

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for prospective basis. [ntangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment losses.

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the rights to such assets are limited to a specified period of tume by contract or law (e.g., patents, licences, trademarks, franchise and servicing nghts) or the
likelihood of technical, technological obsolescence (e.g., computer software, design, p ypes) or ial obsolescence (e.g., lesser known brands are those to which adequate marketing support may not be provided). [f,
there are nosuch limitations, the useful life is taken to be indefinite.

Intangible assets of the Company with finite useful lives comprise acquired computer software. Cost of software is capitalised where it is expected lo provide future enduring economic benefits.
Capitalisation costs include licence fees and cost of implementation / system integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in which the relevant software is implemented for use and is amortised across a period not
exceeding 10 years. Expenses incurred on upgradation / enhancemenis is charged ofT as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

The company owns trademarks in the names of various gardens owned by the company to prevent misuse of these names. As the Trademarks are not intended for contributing for future economic benefits, its cost cannot be
reliably estimated, As the aforementioned conditions do not satisfy , the same have not been capitalised in the Books of Accounts by the management..

Non Current Assets held for Sale

Mon t assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale' when all of the following criteria are met : (i) decision has been made to sell. {i1) the assets are available for immediate
sale in 11s present condition (in) the assets are being actively marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or 1s expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequemly, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Investment Properiy

Investment Property comprises Free-Hold Lands that are held for Capital Appreciation as it has been held for a currently undetermined future use and are recognised at cost.

An Investment Property are derecognised either when they are disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset 1s recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of derecogmition.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrang at the inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease paymenis to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases, in which case the same are recognised as an expense in line with the contractual term,

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized at lower of the fair
value and the present value of minimum lease payment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. TF
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, if any, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

a) In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use ; and
b) In the case of cash generating unit (a group of asset that generates identified, independent cash flow), al the higher of the cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discounting rate that reflect the current market assessment of the time value of the money and the risk specific 1o

the asset. In deermining fair value less cost of disposal, recent marke: transaction is taken into account. If no such transacticn can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
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38 Financial Instruments

a)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,
Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and measurement of Financial Assets

Allfi 1al assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable {o the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, in the same manner as described in subsequent measurement,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the markel place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.¢. the date the
Company commils to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

{a} Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset 1s designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option
1) Business model test : The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset 1o collect the contractual cash flows (rather than 1o sell the instrument prior 1o its contractual maturity to realize its fair
value changes).

ii) Cash flow characteristics test : The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After iniual measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium an
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising trom impai are recognised in the profit or loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts ) through the expected life of the debt instrument or
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

b) Financial ir value through other comprehensive income (FVT!

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the assel is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

1) Business model test . The financial asset i1s held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
11) Cash flow characteristics test | The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets and financial liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss

ity instruments measured at fair val ug € compre! ive income (FVTON
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification 1s made on initial 2l and is 1rre ble.
If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrecoverable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognised in the nt of
profit and loss.
1f the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recogmized in the OC1. There 1s no recycling of the amounts from other
comprehensive income to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primanly d
(a) The nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

gnised (1.¢ d from the Company’s fi il stat ) when:

{b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash {lows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement;
and either:

(i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(ii) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing

involvement. [n that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Write O

An entity shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a Financial Asset when the entity has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or for a portion thereof.
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; i .
The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Expecled Credit Losses are measured through either 12 month ECL or lifetime ECL and it is assessed as following:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. I, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves, such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 hs after the reporting date.

The Company follows *simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivahles

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

The Company follows a provision malrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the porifolio of trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates over the expeeted life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases 1n credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

b Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial habilines depends on their classificanion, as described below:
inancial liabilities at far value through profit or loss

Financial hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging i in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments

Gains or losses on habilities held for trading are recogmised in the statement ol profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied

(b) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and barrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

(c) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarggie

Subsequently, the hiability 15 measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

DocuSigned by; ad B DocuSigned by:
' : . o ‘
Euaclosk Eimoions! Tolrins von, Llnck i i
C10BEA4OCDTDEFZ.. BEGBZTFASAII4ES...

DAZ10CTFFBG8410..



DocusSign Envelope ID: F66957AF-107E-4AD4-8B1C-B853A940D9B0

DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

39

310

kA

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ng of financial instrumen
Financial assets and financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprises cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks and shori-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any, as they are considered an
integral part of the cash management

Farel T =
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is also Company's functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are

reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange rate differences that arise on settiement of monetary items or on transluting of monetary items at each balance sheet reporting date al the closing rate are recognised as

income or expense in the period in which they arise except exchange difference on monetary items that qualify as a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge are rucogmsed initially in OCI to the extent the hedge 1s effective.

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reporied using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the Non tary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair value is determined.
When a gain or loss on non-monetary items is recogmised i OCI any exchange companent of that gain / loss shall be recognised in OCI, conversely when a gain or loss on a non y item is recognised in Profit/ loss any

exchange component of that gain/loss shall be recognised in Profit / Loss.

Fair V. easurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives etc. at {air value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability 15 measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to gencrate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising.th
unohservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fuir value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting penod.

For the purpose of far value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Inventories

Raw matenals including harvested tea leaves, produced from own gardens are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost being the fuir value less cost to sell at the point of harvest of tea leaves.

Raw matenials of purchased tea leaves, Stores and Spare parts and Finished Goods are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. In case of Stores & Spare Parts, Cost is determined using Weighted Average Cost
method. Finished goods include cost of conversion and other cost incurred for bringing the inventories to their present location and condition and Traded Goods includes purchase price and other cost incurred for bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

Stock of Traded Goods are valued at Cost

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busi less the esti d costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Biological Assets

Tea leaves growing on tea bushes are measured at fair value less cost to sell with changes in fair value recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Emplovee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 15 recognised for the I d to be settled wholly before twelve months after the year end, if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be esti d refiably. It includes Salary, wages, paid annual leave
Post Employment Benefits
ined Contributi
Retirement benefits in the form of contribution to Provident fund are defined contribution plans. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when due monthly and are paid to the Government
administered Provident Fund towards which the Company has no further obligation beyond its monthly contribution.

fined t i
The Company operates defined benefit plan viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are determined on the basis of actuanal valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using
the projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs are comprised oft
a ) service cost (including current service cosl, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements),
b ) Net interest expense or income; and
¢) Re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits exp
net defined benefit liability/ asset pertaining to gratuity comprise actuarial gaing/ losses (i.e. changes in the present value resulting from experience adjustments and effects of ch
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Rempgiltement |
retained eamnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

", Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Re-measurement of
i ges in actuarial puons) and is reflected
ggnised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
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3.15

3.16

37

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the respective asset. All other b ing Costs are exy d in the period in which it is incurred

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method as described in Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments, finance charges in respect of finance leases are recognised in accordance with Ind
AS 17- Leases and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Government Grants
Government grants and subsidies are recognised at Fair Value when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants/subsidy will be received. When the grant
or subsidy from the Go relates to revenue, it is accrued and shown as income in the period in which the right to receive grant is established. Government grants relating to the acquisition/construction of property,

plant and equipment are included in non current liabilities as deferred government grant and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
Operating income.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates toa b
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current income tax represents the tax currently pavable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax in respect of the previous years It is d using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

or items recognised directly in

be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates ( and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset only ift

(i) entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(11) deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at

cach balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period.
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3.20

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost

Contingent Liabilities and Assets
Contingent Liabilities are not rec
Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period after deducting any attributable tax thereto for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
For the purpose of calculating diluted ings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

d but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when economic inflow is probable

tion
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non current classification.
An assel is current when:
- It is expected to be realised or intended
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- It 15 expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
- It is cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a iability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal
- It 1s held primarily for the purpose of trading,
= It is due to be settled within twelve
Or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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DARJEELING ORGAN EST PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCIHI, 2021

3.21 Business Combination
Business combinations, if any, are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is ferred to the Company. The consideration transferred in the
acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the Goodwill computed as per IND AS 103 is negative, the
acquirer needs to reassess the identification and measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets. liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of combination. If negative goodwill remains. this is
recognised immediately in OCI and accumulated in equity as Capital Reserve. The Company recognises any non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and hiabilities
assumed. The Company recognlses any non-eonuollmg interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-c lling i 's proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets, Consid transferred does not includ ts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the Slat:mnnt of Profit and Loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

If there is an acquisition of an assel or a group of assets that does not constitute a business. In such cases the Company shall identify and recognise the individual identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet
the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets) and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group shall be allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction or event does not give rise to goodwill

3.23 Research & Development:
Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is recognised as a charge in the St Profit and Loss. Capital expenditure on assets acquired for Research and Development is added to Property, Plant and

Equipment, if any.
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTA PRIVA MITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 {(InRs)
Non Current Current
As at As at As at Asat
6. FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31t March, 2020
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Seeurity Deposit 15,89,192 24.43,592 - -
(b) Others - Advances Recoverable from
Others - - - -
Total 25,389,192 24,43,592 - -
Asat As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
7.  OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Advances
- Considered good 45,04,881 61,21,244
= Considered doubtful 21,59,233 21,59,233
Less- Provision for Doubtful Capital Advances (21,59,233) (21,59,233)
(Hher Advances
= Others - Unsecured, considered good - 16062511
= Others = Unsecured, considered doubtful 2,69,05,603 19,05,78,573
Less- Provigion for Doubtful Other Non Current Advances {2,69,05,603) (19,05,78,573)
Total 45,04,881 2.21,83,755
- (Refer Related Parties Note No. 42)
Asat
8. CURRENT TAX ASSETS 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
TDS and Advance tax (Provisions if any ) 1,12,51,078 49.36,615
Total 1,12,51,078 49.36,615
As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

9. INVENTORIES
(As taken valued and centified by the management)
At Cost or Net Realisable Value which is lower
(a) Finished Goods
(b) Stores & Spares
Total

- Refer Note No 48 for details of camrying amount of Inventones pledged with banks agamst Working Capital loans
- Stores and Spares does not include machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of Fixed Assets,
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2,14,71,483 22718940
28,14,45,732 26,91,64.449

DocuSigned by:

GEBE2TFASAI14ES




DocuSign Envelope ID: F66957AF-107E-4A04-881C-B853A940D9B0

DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

(In Rs.)
As at As at
J3ist March, 2021 315t March, 2020
10. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Opening Balance - 2,13,12.082
Add: Unharvested green tea leaves recognised at fair value 2,21,81,099 -
Less Transfer of harvested green tea leaves for production - 2,13,12082
Closing Balance 2,21,81,099 -
As at As at
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
11  LOANS
Loan given to Employees
Unsecared, Considered Good 24,65.218 49,86,832
Others 2 =
2465218 4986832
As at As at

11A TRADE RECEIVABLES
Others- Unsecured, considered good
Others- Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

- (Refer Mote ‘No.45)
- (Refer Related Parties Note No. 42)

12, CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Balance with banks:
In Current Accounts
Balance in Term Deposits *
(b} Cash in hand (As certified by the management)

* Fixed Deposit amounting to Rs. 65,78,724/- (PY Rs. 21,05,146/-) held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee

13. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Other Advances
(i)  Unsecured, considered good

= Balances with government departments

- Green Leaf Cess

- Other Advances *
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less- Provision for Doubtful Other Current Advances
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31st March, 2021

3 1st March, 2020

4,02,92 349 2,73,38.991
1,01,71,62,233 95,7469 068
(1,01,71,62,233) (95,74,69,068)
4.02,92,349 2,73,38,991
Asat As at
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
2,32,27,391 90,29,834
70,93,480 2435522
2740392 11,10,521
3,30,61,263 12575877
As at As at
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
1,81,74,200 242,001,241
50347016 3,09,79.839
47,78,24,318 30,90,77,999
(47.78,24,318) (30,90,77,999)
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (In Rs.)
(b) Prepaid Expenses 24,99,157 30,70,120
(c) MAT credit Entitlement 44,83,862 44 83 862
(d) Advance paid to suppliers
(1) Unsecured, considered pood 3,11,52,347 2,03,08,637
(ii)  Unsecured, considered doubtful 10,06,267 10.06,267
Less- Provision for Doubtful Advance Given to Suppliers (10,06,267) (10,06,267)
(e) Subsidy Receivable ** 22,73,195 22,713,195
(f) Balance with government authority 72,583,404 72,58.404
11,61,38,180 9,25,75,298

There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them cither severally or jointly with any other persons or advances to firms or privale companics respectively in which any director is a partner or a
director or a member,

*  Advances made are Interest Free
** Subsidy receivable from Tea Board Of India since earlier vear

Asat As at
14. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Statement of Changes in Equity ) 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Authorised Equity Shares
130,00.000 (31.03.20: 130,00,000) Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 13,00,00,000 13,00,00,000
60,000 (31.03.20: 60,000,) Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 6,00,000 6,00,000
99,999 (31.03.20: 99 999) Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 9,99,990 9.99.990
1,16,00,000 {31.03.20:: 1,16,00,000) Class C Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 11,60,00,000 11,60,00,000
77,00,000 (31.03.20 77,00,000) Investor Equity Shares of Rs, 10/= each 7,70,00,000 7,70,00,000
27,00,000 (31.03.20: 27,00,000) Class D Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,70,00,000 2,70,00,000
25,00,000 (31.03.20: 25,00,000) Class E Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 2,50,00,000 2,50,00,000
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
50000000 (31.03.20: Nil) Zero Coupon Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000 -
Total 87,65,99,990 37,65,99,990
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Equity Shares
91,98.759 (31.03.20, 91,98,759) Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 9,19,87,590 9.19.87.590
76,65,633 (31,0320 76,65,633) Investor Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 7.66,56,330 1.66,56,330
54,887 (31.03.20:, 54887) Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 548,870 548,870
51,457 (31.03.20, 51457) Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,14,570 5,14,570
1,06,22.775 (31.03 20, 1,16,22,775) Class C Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,62,17,750 10,62,27.750
25,29,659 (31.03.20; 25,29,659) Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,52,96,590 2,52,96,590
23,842 (31 03.20: 23 842) Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 2,38,420 238420
23,52,620 (31.03.20: 23,52 620,) Class E Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,35,26,200 2,35.26,200
1,32,170(31.03.20; 1,32,170, Class D Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 13,21,700 13,21.700
Issued, Subscribed and Partly Paid up Equity Shares
22,320,450 (31.03 20: 22,20 450) Class D Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, paid up Re 1 each 22,20,450 22,10,450
Total i 31,85.38470 32,85,38.470
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Instruments entirely Equity in Nature
33,93,656 (31.03 20: NIL) Zero Coupon Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 cach 3,39,36,560 -
Total (B) 3,39,36,560 -
Grand Total { A+B) 36,24.75,030 328538470
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (InRs.)

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 315t March, 2021 As at 315t March 2020
No. of Shares A t(Rs.) No_of Shares A (Rs)

Particalars

Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year (including Ordinary, Investor and Class A, B, C, D.E) 3,48,52,252 32,8538470 3,48,52,252 32,8538470

Equity Shares issued during the year - * - -

Equity Shares bought back durning the year - - - “

Equity Shares converted from CCPS to fully paid up shares

Equity Shares ding at the end of the year 3,48,52,252 32,8538470 3.48,52,252 328538470

(b) Reconciliation of the number of compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of Shares Amount (Rs.) No. of Shares Amount (Rs.)
Compulsorily convertible prefi shares ding at the beginning of the year - - = -
Compulsorily convertible preference shares issued during the year (CCPS) 33,93,656 3,39,36,560 = .
Compulsorily convertible prefer shares converted to fully paid up Equity shares(1:1 Basis)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding at the end of the year 33,93,656 3,39,36,560 - -

(c) Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has issued the following classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, namely

(1) Class A Shares shall mean the fully paid equity shares issued by the Company to ABP and Duxton pursuant to the First Investment Agreement which shall on and from the Closing Date, rank pari passu
with the Ordinary Shares in respect of all nghts and benefits, including, but not limited (o, economic rights, voling rights, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or rights issuances.

(i) Class B Shares shall mean the equity shares of the Company issued by the Company to the Promoters pursuant to the First Investment Agreement which are fully paid up on the Effective Date and shall on and from the Closing Date
rank pari passu with the Ordinary Shares in respect of all rights and benefits, including, but not limited to, economic rights, voting rights, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or nights issuances.

(i) Class C Shares shall mean the equity shares of the Company has been issued to the Existing Investors p to the S d I Agr and shall include the Peacock Investors Conversion Shares, Oikocredit
Conversion Shares and Bostaurus Conversion Shares has be issued upon conversion of the Peacock Investors CCPS, Oikocredit CCPS and Bostaurus CCPS on the Conversion Date and the Peacock Investors Class C Shares, if any,
constituting a separate class of Shares and rank with the Ordinary Shares in respect of all rights and benefits, including, but not limited to, ic nights, voting rights, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or rights issuances

(iv) Class D Shares shall mean a separate class of partly paid equity shares issued to the Promoters pursuant to the Second In t Agr tatay of Rs. 207 91(Rupees Two Hundred Seven and Minety One Paisa) per share,
compounded at the rate of 8% per annum from the closing date under the Second In t Agr and ranking with the Ordinary Shares in respect of all rights and benefits, including, but not limited to, ec ic rights,
voting rights, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or rights issuances. 132,170 (One Hundred Thirty Two Thousand One Hundred and Seventy) Clags D Shares are fully paid up as on the Effective Date.

(v) Class E Shares shall mean a separate class of partly paid equity shares issued to the Promoters pursuant to the Second Investment Agreement at a price of Rs. 217 91(Rupees Two Hundred S and Ninety One Paisa) per share
which are fully paid up as on the Effective Date and rank with the Ordinary Shares in respect of all rights and benefits, including, but not limited to, economic rights, voting rights, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or rights
1SSuances,

(v1) Investor Shares shall mean separate class of equity shares issued by the Company to Duxton and ABP pursuant to the First Investment Agreement which shall on and from the Closing Date rank with the Ordinary Shares in respect
of all rights and benefits, mcluding, but not limited to, ic rights, voting nghts, dividends, stock splits, bonus and/or nghis i hout any additional rights and benefits.

(vu) Ordinary Shares shall mean the ordinary equity shares of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees ten only).

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSignad by:
Rembert Biemond Tobias won. Lok Rejore Singh
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ELIN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2021

(IaRs)

(d)
()

(i)

(iii)
(iv)
(AL

(e

-

Terms/ Rights attached to Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares issued during the financial year 2020-21

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company issued Zero Coupon Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) having a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) per CCPS, at a premium of Rs. 15.17 (Rupees Fifteen and
Seventeen Paisa) per CCPS. The total value of each CCPS is Rs. 25.17 (Rupees Twenty Five and Seventeen Paisa), The CCPS shall be convertible at the end of two years from the date of issue and Investors shall be entitled to one
equity share for each CCPS on conversion. The equity shares so issued, on conversion of CCPS, shall carry voting rights and shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the company

A t and the Numb

This investment was enacted on the basis of the board resoltuion dated 4th June 2020 and the details of the I s, In
Investors
Number of

5. No, Name of the Investors Investors Tievesimil

CCPS Amouni (in Rs.
Lakhs

[ Artava AG 21,21,035 533 86
2 Stiftung Evidenz 4,24.207 106.77
E] AUWA Holding GmbH B 48414 21355
Total 33,93,656] 854.18

During the year 33,93,656 CCPS were allotted @ Rs, 25.17 per share on 04.06.2020, which camies zero coupon rate
The Company has filed the Y ing d

issue of 7

Utilization of Fund sed throug pupon Compulsori nvertibl hares {CCP

ts and forms to the Registrar of Companies and the relevant authorities to execute and give effect to the allotment.

of CCPS issued is as per the table below:

The Company received a total of Rs. 854,18 Lakhs (Rupees Eight Hondred Fifty Four Lakhs and Eigtheen Thousand) through issue of 33,93,656 (Thirty Three Lakhs Ninety Three Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Six) CCPS to the

investors. The proceeds thus received by the Company were utilized to repay the Indian Bank Debts, accumulated Bank Interest and other operating and capital business purposes

Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

SL Name of the Sharchatders As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Na. No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
1 |Motilal Makhanlal Holdings Pvt Ltd. 29,73.009 820 29,73,009 9.05
2 |Sampad Vikas Limited 36,43.250 10.05 36,43,250 11.09
3 | Amboatia Tea Exports Private Limited (Erstwhile DA Organic Pvi. Lid. Refer to Note No, A16.19) 17,66,087 4587 17,66,087 5.38
4 |Stitchting Pensioenfonds Abp - - 1,05,97,452 32.26
5 _|Bhumya Tea Company Private Limited 41,79.480 11.53 41,79 480 12.72
6 |Oikoeredit E | Develog Ci Socicty 23,77.242 6.56 2377242 7.24
7 _[Artava AG 1,47,71,470 40,75 14,13,199 4.30
8 |Stiftung Evidenz 21,17,755 584 - -

Details of CCPS holders holding more than 5% shares in the C y

S As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Name of the Shareholders -

Na. No, of Shares held %o of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
1 |Artava Ag Ihll,ﬂ)s 62.50 - -
2 [Stiftung Evidenz 424,207 12,50 - =
3 |Auwa Holding Gmbh 848414 15.00 - -

(g) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: Nil
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
. 4] * .
Rembert Biemand Tobias won. Sk Rajon Singh
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (InRs)
15. OTHER EQUITY (Refer Statement of Changes in Equity )
(a) Security Premium Reserve
This reserves are used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve would be utilized in d with the p of the Act.
Asat As at
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
As per Last Financial Statement 5,04,8873.011 5,04 8873011
Add: Current Year Transfer (CCPS) 5,14,81,761 -
Total (a) 5,10,03,54,772 5,04,8873,011
(b) Cupitul Redemption Reserve
As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
As per Last Financial Statement 1,59,00,000 1,59 ,00,000
Total (b) L5%.00.000_ 1.59.00.000
(e} Capital Reserve
As at As at
31st March, 2021 3 1st March, 2020
As per Last Financial Statement 16,35,56.212 3915107407
Less: Adjustment of Impairment Loss - (3,75,15,51,195)
Total (c) 16,!5,&6,22_ 16,35,56,212
{d) Retained Earnings
Retamed eamings represent accumulated profits earned by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date.
Asat As at
315t March, 2021 315t March, 2020
As per Last Financial Statement (5,30,81,23,076) (1,49,12,05,140)
Add: Profiv/{loss) for the year (83,52,72,031) (3,81,39,75,132)
Add: Overcharged Depn in earlier year s -
Less: Dividend paid/payable on equity shares - -
Less: Dividend paud/payable on preference shares - -
Less: Dividend distribution tax pad/payable “ =
Total (d) (6,14,33,95,108) (5,30,81,23,076)
{e)  Other Comprehensive Income
As at As at
315t March, 2020
As per Last Financial Statement (6,10,26,598) (2,16,57,329)
Add: Dunng the year 2,46,68 366 (3,93,69,268)
Total (¢) (3,63,58,231) (6.10.26.598)

Total Reserves (a+btctd+te)

DocuSigned by:
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E RGANIC TEA X
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

(In Rs)

Non Current

Current

t As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

As at As at
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020

16. LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
(a) Term Loans
From Banks*
Rupee Loan

(b) Vehicle Loans

From Banks
From Others
LUnsecured
(a) ECB Loan 1,68,81,54,581
Total (a+h) 1,68,81,54,582

95,42,84,921 45,94,17,288
8,51,040 10.80.563
50,473

1,10,14,742 -
97,61,50,703 46,05,48,324

2020. The

* UCO Bank exposure is NPA since June 2019. The bank has sent NCLT notice to the company on 30th Sep

* Indian Bank (ertswhile Allahabad Bank) and State Bank of India exposures have also slipped into NPA. The company has approached the Indian Bank (er

consideration.

Details of terms of repayment of long term borrowings

Long term borrowings Terms of Repayment Maturity Date Interest Rate
Secured
a) Termm Loans
= From Bank
20 Quarterly Instalments
State Bank Of India after 6 months from the date  37.12.2021 12%
of first disbursements.
b)  Vehicle Loan
HDFC Bank Ltd 60 EMI 07-05-2020 10.10%
Kotak Mahindra Pnme Ltd 60 EMI 07-05-2020 10.51%
Andhra Bank 60 EMI 31-03-2021 10.25%
Docu: ed by:
DocuSigned by: S
Pebint Etnond Tobias won. Stk
DAZ10CTFFEGE410...
C10BEA4QCDTD4F2. .
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EL 1 T,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Detills of ittt i) } i

(1) UCO BANK TERM LOAN

(ii) ALLAHABAD BANK TERM LOAN

(i) STATE BANK OF INDIA TERM LOAN

.. HDFC BANK | KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LTD. ANDHARA BANK
(V) VEHICLE LOAN TOYATA FINANCIAL SERVICES INDIA LIMITED

Unsecured
{x) (i) ECB-1
Sanctioned Amount
(i) Opening Balance
(i) ECB received in financial year 20-21

(m) Total rep made in fi | year 20-21
(iii) Balance (i - ii)

Repavment Schedule for ECB-1
Repayment Date

14th December 2021
14th December 2022
14th December 2023
14th December 2024
14th December 2025
l4th December 2026
14th December 2027
14th December 2028
14th December 2029
14th December 2030
14th December 2031
14th December 2032

Note :- Applicable rate of int
Exposure Balance as on 31-03-2021 including i st

tis 5% p.a. (net) fixed payable on half yearly basis.
tis

Primary Security- Secured by Hypothecation of Tea crop, Plant & Machinery , Stores, Book Debt & Mortgage of Ambootia TE,
Monteviol TE, Mullootar TE, Moondakotee TE, Nurbong TE, Sivitar TE, Nagri TE, Happy Valley TE, Chongtong TE,
Sepoydhoorah TE. Collateral Security- EMTD on above 10TEs, P I & Cory Gi

Primary Security- Secured by hypothecation of Tea crop, Plant & Machinery , Stores, Book Debt & Mortgage of Cherideo
Purbat, R k Cedar | R & Pandam TE. Collateral Security- EMTD on above 4TEs. Personal Guarantee.

Primary Security- § d by hypoth of Tea crop, Plant & Machinery | Stores, Book Debt & Mortgage of Aloobari Tea
Estate. Collateral Security- EMTD on above 1TEs. Personal Guarantee.

Hypothecated against Motor Car.

Amount {in Euro Million)

20.00
980
9.80
Amount
2.5% of the ding principal of a loan
2.56% of the ding principal of a loan
5.26% of the ling principal t of a loan
5.56% of the ding principal t of a loan
5.88% of the ling principal t of a loan
12.5% of the ding principal of a loan
14.29% of the ding principal amount of a loan
16.67% of the di incipal of a loan

20% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
25% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan

ECB guaranteed by Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal

DocuSigned by:
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50% of the ding principal of a loan
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (In Rs)
(a) (i) ECB-T1 Amount (in Eure Million)
Sanctioned Amount 13.00
(i) Opening Balance 353
(ii) ECB received in financial year 20-21 661
() Total repayment made in financial year 20-21 -
(i) Balance (i - ii) 1014
Repavment Schedule for ECB- 11
Repavment Date Amount
31st March 2023 2.5% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
31st March 2024 2.56% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
31st March 2025 5.26% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
31st March 2026 5.56% of the fing principal t of a loan
315t March 2027 5 88% of the ding principal of a loan
315t March 2028 12.5% of the ling principal of a loan
31st March 2029 14.29% of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
31st March 2030 16.67% of the owtstanding principal amount of & loan
31st March 2031 20% of the outstanding principal t of a loan
31st March 2032 25% of the dmng p pal of a loan
31st March 2033 50% of the ding principal of a loan
31st March 2034 100% of the outstanding pnincipal amount of a loan
Note ;= Applicable rate of interest is 5% p.a. (net) fixed payable on half yearly basis,
Exposure Balance as on 31-03-2021 including & P 15 unhedged
ECB is secured by way of mortgage on Ratanpur Tea Estate and further Tea Estates as Additional Security (as mutually agreed between Lender and Borrower in writing)
ECB is guaranteed by Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal.
As at As at
17. LONG TERM PROVISIONS 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
(a) Employee benefits
() Grabuity 34,04,44,078 32,91,25 555
Total 34,04,44,078 329125555
{Actuarial Valuation for determination of Gratuity liability has been done except 3 TE which are funded with LIC Group Gratuity Scheme which will be accounted for on demand from LIC)
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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DARJEELIN IMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (In Rs.)
As at As al
18, OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
(a) Stamp Duty Payable - 36,57,496
(b)  Secunty Deposit 10,00,000 -
(e) Deferred Statutory Payment 19,53,950 24191568
Total 29,53,950 2.78.49.064
Asat As at
J1st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(a) Liabilities :
Depreciation and amortization expenses 45,71,59,436 395461,128
Ttems under financial assets and financial liabilities giving temporary differences = -
Others 5 a
Total (a) 45,71,59,436 39,54,61,128
(b) Assets:
Others - &
Provision for gratuity 1942816 232,19927
Total (b) 19.42£ 16 2,32,19.927
Net Liability (a-b) 45#1.]6@2& 37,22,41,201
As at As at
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ liabilities (net): 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Opening balance as at year beginning 37,22,41,201 1,601 31,86,633
Tax (benefit) / expense during the period recognised in profit or loss 7,33,08,155 (1,22,71,12,986)
Tax impact on items of Other Comprehensive income that will not be classified to profit & loss 86,67,264 (1,38,32,446)
Closing balance as at vear end 45,42,16,620 37.2241.201
Asat Asat
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

20. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

{a) Loans repayable on d d (S i)
Cash credits from banks *
= From Banks
UCO Cash Credit Term
Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) Cash Credit
(b) From Related Parties (Unsecured) (Interest Free) No Fixed Repayment Schedule
(¢) Others (Unsecured) No Fixed Repayment Schedule
Total

* 1. These Loans are repayable on demand and carries interest as applicable from time to time

36,01,90,067 55,8107 467
10,00,54,233 11.34,16,168
1,08,48,000 1,08 48,000
98,30,337 14130479
48,09,22,637 69,65,02,114

2. Terms of security- Prnmary Secunity - Sccured by Hypothecation of Tea crop, Plant & Machinery, Stores, Book Debts and Mongage of Tea Estates.

3. UCO Bank Cash Credit exposure is NPA since June 2019. The bank has sent NCLT notice to the

2020. The

consideration,

4, Indian Bank (ertswhile All=habad Bank) Cash Credit exposure has slipped into NPA. The company has approached the bank for restructuring of the account which is under active consideration.

Docusigned by:
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DARIJEELING ORGANIC TE.

RIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

21.

22,

13.

{In Rs.)

TRADE PAYABLES

(#) Micro & Small Enterprises
(b) Others
Sundry Creditors for goods & services
Total

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-OTHER

(a) Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer Note Mo, 16 )
(b} Interest payable on borrowings
Total

Ueo Bank
Overdue Instalment
Overdue Interest
Overdue Interest- CC

Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank)
Overdue [nstalment
Overdue Interest
Others
Overdue Interest- CC

State Rank Of India
Overdue Instalment
Overdue Interest
Others

Andhra Bank
Overdue Interest
Others

ECB
Interest acerued but not due
Overdue Interest
Others

Vehicle Loan
Others

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Advance payments from customers
(b} Share Application Money to be refunded
(¢) Other payables
(i) Statutory dues (PF, TDS, GST & Others) *
(i) Salary, Wages, Bonus & Others
(i) Liabilities for Services & Others (Electricity, rent, GR IR etc) **
Taotal

** The PF Commissioner of Darjeeling has in prir zipal approved payment of outstanding PF contribution (Foth employer and employee contribution)
approval for payment of PF dues (employer contribution) till February'2020 in 36 instalments.

DocuSigned by:
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As at

31st March, 2021

As at
315t March, 2020

12,49,587 -
10,22 46,197 B.66,46,732
10,34,95,784 B.66,46,732
As at As at

31st March, 2021

315t March, 2020

97,61,50,703 46,05,48,324
493841110 21,83,12,791
1,46,99 91,814 67,88,61,115

29,75,69,696 29,59,97,288
8,31,28,183 526,84 834
17,69,11,660 10,69,80,690
59,26,17,618 3,42,00,000
10,52,30,112 4,03,79919
8,38,00,000
2,84,46,104 -
4,54,20,000 1,51.40,000
1,25,53,331 36,178,306
1,62,55,068 3,02,80,000
2,99,599 -
24,22,540 -
1,2241.917 1,45,89,042
7,50,30,204 4
2,10,14,742 -
851,040 11,31,036
1,46,99.91 814 67,88,61,115
- As at As al
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
25,03,41,038 20,12.47,197
9,80,979 -
21,90,99, 362 28,89 52 827
15,47,87,713 14,63,00,959
1,75,63,118 75,61.370
64,27,72,210 64,40,71,353
1 In Cherideo Purbat the pny has ottained
DocuSigned by:
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 {InRs.)
As at As at
4. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
(a) Employee benefits
(i) Gratuity - -
Total u -
Asat As at
15, CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
Income Tax (Met of Payments) 1,42,53,943 14253943
Total 1,42,53,943 142,53 943
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
26. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
{a) Sale of Products
(i)  Sale of Products
Finished Goods
-Tea
- Domestic 6,08,57,650 1.06.23 43,095
- Export 63,95,82,779 298,17 869
- Spices
= Domesnc - 16,98 234
- Export 1,04,69,176 27 495
= Green Leaves
- Domestic 211,500 -
(b) Other Operating revenue
Sale of Services & Accessonies - 16,59,298
Total 71,11,21,104 1,09,55.45991
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

17. OTHER INCOME

(a) Interest income
= Interest on Fixed Deposits
- Others

(b) Compensation Received

(c) Miscellaneous Income

(d) Foreign Currency Fluctuation Gain(Net)
(e) Changes in fair value of biological assets

(D) Liabilities written back

(g) Pror Period Incomes

(h)  Profit on Sale of Assets

(1) Recovery of Doubtful debts
Total

DocuSigned by:
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31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

403212 187,770

- 50,085

67,12,142 762,191
2,21,81,099 -

9,43,54,939 456,289
37,89,777 -

18,85,697 1,78.428
2,12,52.575 -

15,05,79,441 16,34,764
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ELING ORGANIC PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (ln Rs.)
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
28, CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STORES & SPARES 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
(a) Stocks at the begmning of the year
Finished goods 24,64,35,509 35,81,50,092
Stock of Stores 2,27,28,940 20687643
(b) Less: Stocks at the end of the year
Finished goods 25,99,74,250 24,64 35,509
Stock of Stores 2,14,71,483 22728940
Tatal (lé]ls l,zs-q 10,96,73 286
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 315t March, 2021 315t March, 2020
a) Salaries and wages
- Salaries, Wages & Bonus 60,87,70,423 62,14 86 996
- Grratuity 5,22,07,787 9,64,00,148
b) Contribution to provident and other funds
- Contribution to Provident Fund 5,86,67,487 6,08,54,747
<) Staff welfare expenses 1,70,03,883 1,50,69,679
T 73,66,49,580 79,38,11,569
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
30. FINANCE COSTS 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
(a) Interest expense
- Term Loans 11,54.29,122 11,59,92.197
= Cash Credit 8,49,71,139 8,33,36,905
-ECB 7,6552,319 4 66,60953
= Unsecured Loan 10,23,096 -
(b) Others 25,79,995 3590266
Total 28,05,55,671 24,95 80321
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
31. OTHER EXPENSES 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020
A MANUFACTURING & SERVICE EXPENSES
(1) Power and fuel 5,20,93,677 5,64,90,983
(i) Repairs to Buildings 36,380,664 2544872
(i) Repairs to Machinery 38,97,099 35,21,751
(1v) Repairs o Other Assets 80,12,008 95,37.281
{v) Changes in fair value of biological assets - 2,13,12,082
(vi) Other Manufacturing & Service Expenses 4,24.76.711 42431818
Sub Total (a) 11,01,60,156 13,58 38,786
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2021 (In Rs.)
B SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
(i) Freight, Shipping, Delivery and Selling Expenses 2,00,44,995 67,12,433
(1) Brokerage on sale 1,20,894 7.91,790
(1i) Sales Promotion Expenses 14,26,670 31,92,808
{iv) Certification 63,63,554 55,55,249
(v) Other Selling & Distribution Expenses 1,79,59,070 53,04.816
Sub Total (b) 4.59,15,183 2.15,57,095

C. PAYMENT TO AUDITOR

(i) Statutory Auditor 431,250 431250
(ii) For Tax Audit 86,250 86,250
(111} Out of Pocket Expenses 50,000 =
Sub Total (c) 5,67,500 5.17,500
D. OTHERS
(i) Rent 1,57,87,922 1.94,13,000
(i) Lease Rent 10,37,707 15,12,090
(11i) Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 79,60,029 31,93,538
(1v) Insurance 34,992,198 2492984
(v} Bank Charges 15,74,808 23,357,506
(vi) Consultation and Advisory Charges 24743775 1,15,17,363
{vi} Late Fees-Tds 51,000 2,400
(viii) Tds-Short Deduction - 28,66,795
(1x) Inadmissible GST 2,32,87334 3,09,10,142
(x1) Foreign Currency Fluctuation Loss (Net) 3,98,34,729 7.72.75.068
Sub Total (d) 11,77.69,502 15,15,40,886
E. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES .
(i) Motor Vehicle Expense 63,444,043 68,64.327
(1) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 55,81,006 1,03,46.236
(1i) Stamps, Postage and Telegrams 345545 332782
(iv) Printing & Stationary 8,34,781 12,72,198
(v) Membership & Subscription 19,68,798 40,89,742
(vi) Telephone and Telex 14,85,932 18.96,739
(vii) Other Expenses 1,33,81,760 22968427
(vili) Director Fees 11,89,042 2583333
(viil) Chairman Fees 3,56,164 20,00,000
(1x) Board Meeting Expenses 11,64,986 -
(x) Prior Period Expenses - -
(xi) Provision for Doubtful Debts 94340813 95,74,69.068
(xii) Provision for Doubtful Capital Advances - 21,59,233
(xiii) Provision for Doubtful Other Mon Carrent Advances - 19,05,78,573
(xiv) Provision for Doubtful Advance Given to Suppliers - 10,06.267
{xv) Provision for Doubtful Other Current Advances - 10,90,77.999
(xvi) Loss due to Quality Rejection 29,85,079 10,60,788
(xvii) Loss On Sale Of Fixed Asscts 3,60,756 1.92,88.902
Sub Total (e) 13,13,38.725_ i 35339,94,6 14
Total (a+b+ctd+e) 40,57,51,046 1,84 24 48 881
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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DAR. LIN PRIV,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 (InRs.)
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
31A EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Insurance Claim Received = 83,720
Impairment Loss - (2.73.50,74,074)
- 12.?3.49.90,354}

2.

33

The management has done their evaluation at the end of the year 2020-21 and concluded that there is no material difference in the carrying value of assets and the prevailing net realisable value of assets. Hence the management is of the
opinion that impairment is not required to be charged for this year.

The Company had done impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asscts (after providing the depreciation) to the extent of Rs. 64866 25 Lakhs, during the vear 19-20, based on valuation of Tea Gardens done by M's
Vestian Global Workplace Services Pyt, Lid., a world renowned valuer. The valuation so done was proportionately allocated to all heads of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets as on 31 03 2020 and accordingly the excess
of book value over market value was charged as impairment. The Company had an amount of Rs. 39151 07 Lakhs in Capital Reserve which was ferred from Revaluation Reserve at the time of Ind As transition. The impairment loss
was first adjusted with Capital Reserve and excess was recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss account,

As a result, the company had charged an one time impairment loss of T 27350 74 Lakhs in the carming value of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets as an ptional item in the fi ial results for the financial Year ended
31st March 2020

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
Income Tax 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

I Income tax related to items charged or credited directly to profit or loss during the vear:
(a) Statement of profit and loss

(i)  Current Income Tax - "

(1)  Income Tax for Earlier Years = =

(1ii) Deferred Tax expense/ (benefit) 7,33,08,155 (1,22,71,12 986)
7,33,08,158 (1,22,71,12,986)

(b}  Other Comprehensive Income
{1} Deferred Tax related to items recognised in OC] during the year:

- Net expense/(benefit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 86,67,264 (1,38,32,446)
86,67,264 (1,38,32.446)
Total (at+h) B|l 9:75i¢ 19 { 1.14109.4 5{‘32 )

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
Other Comprehensive Income 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

i Ttems that will not be classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Created during the year 3,33.35,630 (5,32,01,714)
i [ncome tax relating to items that will not be
classified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Created during the year (86,67,264) 138,32 446
Total l.ﬁﬁ!e“ (3,93.69 268)
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ELI A EST. SPR LIMITE]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont....)

3 Contin iabilities & Commitmenis (Rs. In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
A.  Not Provided for:- 31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020

(n}  Clmms against the Company not acknowledged as debts
= Demand raised by following authorities in dispute:
(1) Settlement of Provident Fund dues arising out of PF related litigation (Happy Valley Tea Estate) 78.00 78.00
(i)  Outstanding demand raised by Income Tax Authorities 17,539.86 17,11849

1} lrl the A.rbllrwm {AP 920 uth'I lb! bt:lwm Geuerul Fibre Dcalcts Pv hmnnd and Darjeeling Organic Tea Estates Pyt Limited with regards to Cheriodeo Purbat Tea Estate, an award was granted dated 28th March 2019. The
award rejected all claims of General Fibre Dealers Pvt Limited as clai ( of app: 1y Rs. 500 Lakhs) and all clarms of the Darjeeling Organic Tea Estates Pyt Limited (of approximately Rs 700 Lakhs) as respondent. The
Award further stated that General Fibre Dealers Pvt Limited as claimant will indemnify ijaeling Organic Tea Estates Pvt Limited as respondent, in the event Darjeeling Organic Tea Estates Pvt Limited is obliged to pay any
amount to any of the third parties now in occupation of any portion of the tea estate. General Fibre Dealers Privatet Limited has subsequently filed a petition AP no 384 of 2019 against the arbitration in Calcutta High Court. General
Fibre Dealers Privatet Limited has withdrawn its petition filed in the High court in June2021.

2) An arbitration proceedings was concluded between Darjeeling Organic Tea Estates Private limited (as Clai } and National Insurance Company Limited, with the arbitration award declared on 17th of August 2020. This was
regarding & fire in the Ambootia Tea Factory in August 2014 for which the Insurance claim was settled by NICL at a lower value than claimed by DOTEPL, The verdict upheld the Claim Report of the |5t Survevor, who had
recommended Rs 822 Lakhs claim payment to Darjecling Organic Tea Estates Private limited. Out of this, since the Company had already received Rs 548 Lakhs as settlement pre- arbitration, Rs. 274 Lakh is further have to be paid

by NICL. Addionally, NICL will have to pay 7% interest (simple interest) from December 2017 (when the arbitration started) to the date of the award . Further, National Insurance Company Limited will pay the Company cost of
Arbitration as ascertained to be Rs 28.99 lakhs, The overall receivables on account of the verdict is approximately Rs 350 Lakhs. N 1 I Company Limited has filed an application (AP No. 381) for setting aside the
award and another application (GA/1/2020) for stay on the award, The company had also filed an Ex:v:utlm Appllcauon on | 5th February 2021 at the Cummemal Division of the High Court, Calcutta. The matters nre still in court
al this stage and the two parties are in the process of filing thewr affidavits in relation to their resp PP
B.  Bank Guurantee 65.79 2105
35 f loans given, Investments LA AT ¥ /s 186(4) of (<3 2013
Al Loan Given
Other Advance given for general business purpose 4505 221.84
Loan To Employee 24,65 4987
Other Advances 503.47 309.30
B.  Investment Made
There are no investments by the company. NIL NIL
€. Guarantee Given

There is no guarantee given during the year. NIL NIL

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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ARJEELIN RGANIC TEA ESTA 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2021

36  Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
(a)  Briel

In Rs. Lakhy
Year Profit/{Loss)
2017-18 (2,411.83)
2018-19 11436
2019-20 (50,410.88)
Average Profit / (Loss) (17,569.45)

{b)  Since the average profit is negative for the last three years, the company is not required to spend on CSR in the year 2020-21. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year in pursuance to the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder - Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil)

37 Scheme of Arrangements

371 During the year 2020-21, the Company has entered into an agreement with Fine Tea Pluck LLP, for the transfer of lease rights in Nurbong Tea Estate. Also the comapany has d ino a tnp B twith D. K. Industries
and Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Pvt. Lud., for the sale the Ratanpur Tea Estate.
:_l"l Name of the Tea Estate & Address | Agreed Value Transfer is Subject to
a) |Nurbong Tea Estate, Darjeeling Rs. 900 Lakhs Approval from Banks
Ratanpur Tea Estate, Dist. Sibsagar, " Approval from Revenue
b) Assam, Rs. 775 Lakhs Department, Govt. of Assam
38 Forvign Currency Inflows / Outflows
A. Expenditure in Foreign Currency
= As on As on
ey 31032021 | 31032020
Amount Amount
Ao (Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
igmﬁm Fees and Sustainability Report 3261 2414
ces
| TravellingBoard Meeting Exj 6.63 12.09
|Purchase OF Stores 3.00 0.32
| Training & Development Expenses 1.00 -
|Membership Fees 819 3
|Sales Promotion Exg 574 -
Interest on ECB 765.52 436.96
Total H22.70 473,50
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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DARJEELIN RGANI S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

B.  Inflows / Earnings in Foreign Currency

As on As on
Fartleaar 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Amount Amount
A H
R (Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
Collection From Export Sales 6,247.99 144.80
Trade Advance - 1,859.34
|ECB Loan (Net Of Brokerage) 5,769.96 2,743.08
| Total 12,017.95 4,747.22
39 Valueofl c LF Basi
As on As on
Et s 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Amount Amount
Account Head
i (Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
Component & Sparc Parts 3.00 0.32
Capital Goods - -

40 Disclosures as required by Ind AS 19, Emplovee Benefits
{#) Defined contribution plans:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Contribution to defined contribution plan, recogmsed as expense for the year as under:
(i) Employer's contribution to Government Provident Fund S86.67 G08.55
Total 586.67 608,55

(b) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is ged by Trust d with Life Insurance Corporation of India for 3 Gardens. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by
actarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Group Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gramity of
employees at the vear end and the balance of funds with Life Insurance Cotpomtlcm of India, is pmvldul for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Actuanal gains/ (losses) for defined benefit plans are recognised in l'ull and are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and Other Comprel ve Income accordingly as per Actuarial Valuation Report. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum pay to vested employees at , death,
incapacitation or termination of empl ,of an t as per Gratuity Act . Vesting occurs umn pletion of five i years of service in accordance with Indian law,

Dneusmmd by: EDm;t.lsmrm! by:
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ARJEELIN

el ¥

ESTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

L. Following information are based on report of actuary for employee benefit expenses

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Change in present value of the obligation during the year

(1)
)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7}
(8)
(9)

Present value of obl
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) / loss ansing from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from ch in i 1y

Present value of obligation at year end

at year begi

1 e

= W

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year

(1
2)
(3)
4
(5)
(6)

Reconcili

Fair value of plan assets at year beginning

Interest income on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets other than interest income
Contrnibution made by the Employer

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at year end

of obligation and fair value of assets

(1}
(2)
(3)

Present value of the obligation at year end
Fair value of plan assets at vear end
Funded status [surplus / (deficit)]

Expense recognised in the St of Profit and Loss

(1))
2}
(3)
(4)

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Interest income on plan assels

Net cost recognised in Profit or Loss

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(1)
2)
(3)
4

Expected return on plan assets other than interest income

Actuarial (gain) / loss ansing from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gun) / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain) /loss arising from changes in experience adjustments
Net (gain)/ loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

DocuSigned by:
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
Gratuity (Funded
2020-21 2019-20
334119 243429
206.14 187.44
7294 -
215.60 18744
(58.15) -
2441 139.80
__(357.77) 392.21
3,454.37 3,341.19
345437 334119
3,4&31 334119
106.15 187.44
7294
125,60 187.44
504_.29 374.88
2441 13980
(357.77) 392.21
[333.!61 532.02
DocuSigned by:
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DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

(F) Net Defined benefit liability/| Asset) Reconciliation

(1) Net Defined benefit liability/( Asset) at the beginning of the year 3,341.19 243429
(2)  Defined benefit cost included in P/L 504,68 374.88
13) Total remeasurement included in OC1 (333.36) 53202

(4)  Employers contribution (58.15) -
Net Defined benefit linbility/(Asset) at the end of the year 3,454.37 334119
1. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations: 2020-21 2019-20
Year | 408.94 79928
Year 2 25147 168.64
Year 3 351.35 210.76
Year4 341.57 197.73
Year § 362.96 238.07
Year 6 299.52 25544
Year 7 337.02 28097
Year 8 331.86 30001
Year 9 314,38 324.53
Year 10 264.07 297,58
Above 10 vear - 14,992.04
Total expected payments 3,263.14 18,065.04

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 68.00 Years

(315t March, 2020: 67.30 years)

The best estimate ¢ ibution for the comy during the next year would be Rs. 84026 Lakhs
(315t March, 2020 Rs 1196.66 Lakhs).

Amount payable upon disconti of all employment is Rs. 3415,82 Lakhs
(31st March, 2020: Rs. 3436.67 Lakhs).

. Experience Adjustments on Present Value of DBO and Plan Assets
2020-21 2019-20
(Gain)Loss on Plan Liabilities (357.77) 39221
% of Opening Plan Liabilities -10.71% 16.11%

(Gain)/Loss on Plan Assets = !
% of Opening Plan Assets L -

IV. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions considered for defined benefit obligation (Gratuity):

Sensitivity analysis presented below represents expected change in present value of defined benefit obligation based on reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions occurming al the year end.
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A A TES PRIV D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st

(L]}

()

(d)

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

i
2)
(3)
4)
(3)

One percentage increase in discount rate

One percentage deerease in discount rate

One percentage increase in rate of salary escalation
One percentage decrease in rate of salary escalation
One percentage increase in rate of withdrawal rate

V.  Actuarial Assumptions

(1
2)
3)
4)
(5
(6)
(7)
(8)
(91

Discount rate
Martality Rate
Salary Escalation - First 5 years
Salary Escalation - After 5 years
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
Disability Rate
Retirement Age
Average Future Service
Withdrawal rates , based on age: (per annum)
Up to 25 years
26 - 30 years
31-35years
36 - 40 years
41 - 45 years
46 - 50 years
5155 years
Above 56 years

Identification of Operating Segments:

The Comp Op

No other operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments as per the criteria specified in the Ind AS

MARCH, 2021

in a Single Reportable Operating Segment i.¢. Cultivation, manufacture and sale of Tea.

Business Seg wise re f /i Niabilities )
Since there is Single Reportable Operating Segment that is Agriculture Prod
Geegraphical Information

The Companies Revenue is mainly generated from the export of teas except fora

are not applicable,

R from five

DocuSigned by:
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C10BEA4OCDTDAFZ..

disclosure of Operating Scgment wise Assets, Liabiliti

is Rs. 4323 45 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 1075684 Lakhs) which is more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company.,
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2020-21 2019-20
310017 313874
3,593.72 3,570.54
3,606.06 357348
309537 313264
334929 335434
Gratuity (Funded)

2020-21 2019-20

6.90% 7 .00%

6% 6%

6% 6%

N/A NA

5% of Mortality Rate 5% of Mortality Rate
58 Years 58 Years
15.27 14.80 Years
B.00% B.00%
7.00% 7.00%
6.00% 6.00%
5.00% 5.00%
4.00% 4.00%
3.00% 3.00%
2.00% 200%
1.00% 1.00%
& Results

ing to Rs 601.99 Lakhs for the Current Year. Hence Geographical Seg wise Assets/Liability R

Rajor Singh
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DARJEELING OR PRIV 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2021

41 (A)  Related parties and their rel ship with the C

(i) Key Management Personnel of the Company:

(i) Sharcholder Holding more than 20% of Equity Shares of
the Company

{m)  Enterprises over which key management personnel are
able 1o exercise significant influence with whom there

were transactions during the year :
iB) clos ions with Relat
Nuture of transactions

Remuneration
Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal - Director
Mrs. Reena Bansal — Director
Mr. Anil Bansal — Director
Mr. Hrithik Bansal — Director
Mr. Vikram Kapur
Ms, Urvi Kanodia
Mr. Rajan Singh

DocuSigned by:

C10BEAMOCDTDAF2.

Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal — Director - Changed to Non- Executive Director from 03.11.2020
M. Reena Bansal - Director - Changed to Non- Exccutive Director from 03.11,2020

Mr. Hnthik Bansal — Director - Resigned on 10.08 2020

Mr. Anil Bansal ~ Director - Resigned on 10,08.2020

Mr, Rembert Biemond — Director

Mr. Weldon Robert Scott - Director - Resigned on 21.01.2021

Mr. Markus Jermann — Director - Appointed on 16.12.2020

Mr, Tobias von Glenck - Director - Appointed on 16.12.2020

Mr. Rajan Singh- CS - Appointed on 10.08.2020

Artava AG

Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited
Bhumya Private Limited

Bhuntya Tea Company Private Limited

Bush Tea Company Private Limited
Darjeeling Beverages Private Limited
Dreamview Commodeal Private Limited
Motilal Makhanlal Holding Private Limited
Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Pnivate Limited
Sampad Vikas Limited

Sevoke Tower Private Limited

Natural Hydro & Industrial Cooperative Society
Parbat Hydro & Industrial Cooperative Society

Ref. to Note (A) above

(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
(n 92.34 334.51
(i1) 3847 1898
(i) 4154 1325
(iv) - 104.46
V) - 7.7
(vi) - 236
(van) 388 <
176.22 561.27
DocuSignad by:
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DARJ f

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2021

Director Fees

Mr._ Sanjay Prakash Bansal - Director
Mrs. Reena Bansal — Director
Mr. Hrithik Bansal - Dircetor

Chairman fees

Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal - Director

Professional Fees

Rembert Biemond AB

Sales

Bhumya Tea Company Private Limited
Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Private Limited
Bhumya Private Limited

Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited

Purchases

Bhumya Tea Company Private Limited
Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Private Limited
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited

Rembent Biemand

CICBEA4CCDTDAF2...

(1)
()
(1)

(1)

o)
)
(1)
(1ii)
(iv)
(1)
(i)
(i)
DocuSigned by:
Tobins won. Slondk
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
5.95 10.00
5.95 2.50
- 13.33
11.89 25.83
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
3.56 20.00
3.56 20.00
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
37,71 35.50
3 3550
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
0.47 2313
- 752.53
~ 9,956.01
- 120,58
0.07 10,838.45
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 201920
1,051.17 694.33
151.45 1,767 86
120.70 15.77
1,423.32 2477.96
: DocuSigned by:
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ELING OR /i ITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED st MARCH, 2021

Rent

Mr. Sanjay Prakash Bansal
Mrs. Reena Bansal
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited

Provision for Doubiful Assets

Bhumya Private Limited

Bush Tea Company Private Limited

Darjeeling Beverages Private Limited
Dreamview Commaodeal Private Limited
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited

Natural Hydro & Industrial Co-operative Society
Parbat Hydro & Industnal Co-operative Society

Liabilities Written

Dreamview Commodeal Private Limited

Recovery of Doubtful Assets

Bhumya Private Limited

DocuSigned by:
Rembert Biemond
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(i)
(iiiy
(1v)
)
(vi)
(vii)
(i)
(1]
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
0.90 77.13
450 21.60
115.46 45.00
120.86 143.73
{Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
3,407.06 508576
. 1,663.62
= 7847
(1,636.73) 1,636.73
1,687.46 -
- 082
s 189.76
3AST.T9 8,655.16
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
943.41 -
943.41 -
(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
193.51 -
193.51 -
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G ORGANT IVATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Remuneration of key management personnel  The remuneration of key management personnel of the Company are set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in Ind AS 24 Related party disclosures.

(Hs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Salaries & Wages (1) 167.89 540.72
Contribution to Providemt & Other Funds * {ii) 8.33 20.55
176.22 561.27

*Does not include gratuity as it is provided in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation for the company as a whole and hence individual amount cannot be determined.

The transactions with related parties are net of taxes & reimbursement of expenses and have been made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

(C)  Balances as at vear end are set out below:

Other Current Linbilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 201%-20
Sanjay Prakash Bansal (i) (9.44) 11205
Reena Bansal {ii) 63.03 4225
Hrithik Bansal (i) 14.93 4297
Anil Bansal (i) .78 4.55
Mr. Rembert Biemond 3N e
Rajan Singh (v) 0.50 -
109.50 201 82
Trade Payable (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Sevoke Towers Privale Limited (1) 103.56 103 .56
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited (i) 95.12 -
198.68 103.56
s ; (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Sanjay Prakash Bansal (i) 98.50 98.50
Motilal Makhanlal Holding Private Limited (1) 6.98 6.98
Sampad Vikas Limited (1i1) 3.00 3.00
= 108.48 108 48
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2021

Trade Receivable (net of provisions) (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited (i) - 126.61
= 126.61
Other Non Current Assets (net of provisions) (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Bhumya Tea Company Private Limited (i) 142.14 160.63
i42.14 160 63
Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Ambootia Tea Exports Private Limited (i) 82.76 8418
Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Private Limited (1) 5592 165.46
138.68 249 64

43 Non-cancellable leases

The Company has entered into non-c llable 14 lease agr for F. ten estates si {1 the states of West Bengal for a period ranging between 19 to 30 years with option for renewal on mutually agreed terms and a
tea-manufacturing factory. The Lease Rent 15 charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss and future lease commitments are.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20
Commi for mini lease pay in relation to n llable leases as follows:
Within one year 598 598
Later than one year but not later than five years 29.88 2988
Later than five years 64.76 7074
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

44 Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and I were used to estimate the fair values:
(1) Fair value of cash and cash equivalence, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables | other current liabilities, short-term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying s largely
due to the short term maturities of these i
(2} Financial instruments with fixed and vanable i rate are evaluated by the Company based on parameter such as interest rates and individual credit h of the ¢ party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are

taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique.

Level | - quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effects on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly,
Level 3 : techniques which use inputs that have a significant effects on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The following tables provides classification of financial instruments and the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

(a) Disclosure for the year ended 315t March, 2021

Fair Value hierarchy
Carrying Valoe Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(1) Financial Assets
Financial Assets at amortised cost
Trade Receivables 4,02,92,349 4,02,92.349 - - 4,02,92,349
Other Financial assets excluding denvative financial instruments 25,89,192 25,89,192 - - 15,89,192
Cash & cash equivalents 3,30,61,263 3,30,61,263 - - 3,30,61,263
T&Iﬂ ‘J’M - - 7,59,42.804
{2) Financial Liability
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions 3,14,52,27,923 3,14,52,27,923 - - 3,14,52,27,923
Trade Payables 10,34,95,784 10,34,95,784 - - 10,34,95,784
Other Financial liabilities excluding derivative 49.38,41,110 49,38,41,110 - - 49,38,41,110
T STAISAST _ 37T42S64MT : : 3743564817
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(3) Biological Asscts other than Bearer Plants

(Valued at Fair Value Less Cost to Sale)

Unharvested Tea Leaves 2,21,81.099 2,21,81,099 - 2,21,81,099 =
Total 2,1,81,099 2,21,81,099 - 2.21,81,099 -
(b) Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Financial Asset/ Liability Valuation Technique Significant unobservable input

Trade Receivables ECL Realisation pattern or past experience

Loans DCF using EIR method  Discount rate

Other Financial assets excluding derivative financial instruments DCF using EIR method Discount rate

Borrowings from banks and financial institutions DCF using EIR method Discount rate

45  Financial Risk Management Objective and Palicies:

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial perfi of the Comp
below -

, the company has risk management policies as descnbed

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of nisk: interest rate risk, currency nsk and commodity
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency receivables, payables, loans and borrowings.

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The activities of this department include management of
cashr s, impl ing b ing strategies and ensuring compliance with market sk limits and policies.

(1) Imterest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term
Borrowings with variable rates, which expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk. During 31st March 2021 and 31st March'2020 the company’s borrowimgs at variable rate were d inated in INR

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profil before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate b ings, as follows:

2020-21 2019-20

(+/ =) 50 Basis Points (+/ <) 50 Basis Points

Effect on profit before tax due to interest rate sensitivity (Rs, In Lakhs)

156.23 136.62
DocuSianed by: DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

{1i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Ci 's operating and fi ing activities. As on March 31, 2021, the Company have foreign currency exposure, which is unhedged and hence exposed o risk. which depends upon market vaniability in future
which cannot be predicted as of now

(ii1) Price Risk

Factors that can affect prices include political and regulatory chang | variations, her, technology and market conditions

(b)  Credit Risk

Credit nsk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the ¢ party resulting in a fi 1l loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primanly Trade Receivables). Trade receivables are
typically unsccurcd and are derived from revenue nrucd from customers. [‘hsmmcr credit nsk 1s managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s policy and procedures which un-'ul\ra credit upprovals, establishing credit
limits and ¢ ly itoring the credit worthiness of customers to which lhc Company grants credit terms in the | course of busi [} ding ¢ receivables are itored. Credit risk from balances
with banks, term deposits, loans, is d by Company's finance di of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties und within credit limits asstgncd to each counlﬂ']lﬂﬂy The l[mrts are setto
minimise the cmmnmum of risks and ihmfuc mmgﬂe financial Ios: through counterparty’s potential failure to make p ts. The Company itors ratings, credit spreads and financial gth of its T The

Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as of 315t March,2021 & 31st Mm:h. 2020 1s the carrying amounts.

(i)  Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to cust credit risk I O ling customer receivables are regularly monitored. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.
The Company evaluates the concentration of nsk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its arel d in several jurisdictions and op  largely independ rh
During the year 2019-20, company’s 90% of the total revenue from operations is from Bhumya Private Limited, realisability of which is doubtful to the extent of more than 50%. The pany has made a p against such
doubtful receivables.
The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of pi ) have been considered from the date of the invoice.

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at Asat
31st March, 2021 315t March, 2020

Less than 6 months 366,44 513528
More than 6 Months 10,208.11 4,712.80
Total 10,574.55 9,848.08
(ii)  Financial Instraments and Cash and bank balances
Credit nsk from balances with banks and financial institutions 1s managed by the Company's treasury department in accord with the Company's policy. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the Management on regular

basis. All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit nisk due to good credit ratings assigned (o (hese entities.
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() Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of
liquidity to meet its cash and coll qi The Company closely itors its liquidity position and maintains adequate sources of financing.

The table below summarises the matunity profile of the Company’s financial liabilitics bascd on contractual payments

(Rs in Lakhs)
Less than | year 1 to 5 vears > 5 years Total
31st March, 2021
Borrowings
Term Loans from Banks 9,542.85 - - 9,542.85
Vehicle Loans 851 - - 151
Cash credit from Banks (Renewable every year) 4,602.44 - - 4,602.44
ECB 210,15 4,048.10 12,833.45 17,091.69
Others. 108.48 - - 108.48
Other Financial Liabilities other than current maturities of borrowings and lease obligation 1,034.96 - - 1,034.96
1550739 404810 12.833.45 32,388.93
(d)  The impact of COVID-19 on the Company is being closely reviewed with the Management by the Board from time to time. The Company continued its operations adopting social di g noms, g utmost safety of
employees at its gardens and other locations as per the directives given by the Central and State Govemment. However, dispatches were affected due to resmcuan on muw:mcat of fimished products to the ports for exports
towards the end of the financial year. The Company’s products viz. Tea i ls meant for daily conmpnon in households and *out-of home' and the Manag down in some geographies in the short term
especially in the ‘out-of-home’ consumption due to COVID-19 pand The is kecping a close watch on any likely impact of second wave of the yaﬂd:rnlc which has recently ded and the apprehended
outbreak of third wave. The Board and the Management shall keep & continuous vigil to closely monitor the situation as it evolves and do its best to take all necessary measures, in the interest of all stakeholders of the
Company

(e)  Loan accounts with UCO bank became NPA in June 2019. Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) and State Bank of India have also slipped into NPA. The company had initiated discussions with the UCO bank since Dec
2019 for restructuning / settl t of the outstanding loan and the bank had offered a One Time Settlement (OTS) Proposal to the company vide letter dated 28th May 2020, Whilst the discussions were still in progress, the

company has received a copy of a petition filed under section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, from UCO Bank on 30.09.2020. The Company has again submitted the ing proposal to the bank on
28.10.2020 and continues to be in discussions with the bank for the approval of the said restructuring proposal, which is now in advance stages of approval, The same proposal has also been submitted with Indian Bank
(erstwhile Allahabad Bank).

With reference to UCO banks petition to National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata (NCLT) for admission into Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules (Case reference C.P. (IB) No.
1382/KB/2020), on 2&'IOJ2020 Company has imtiated a Resolution proposal vide RBI circular no DBR No.BP.BC 45/21.04.048/2018-19 dated Tth Junc, 2019. As per the RBI guide lines, the lender, UCO bhank had appointed
an Independ | to conduct Techno Economic Viability (TEV) study report and the same has been submitted on 8th March, 2021. Further IDBI Capital Markets and Securities limited, one of the leading Investment
banker and admr has been i to complete the Informats dum and the report has also been submitted by IDBI on 16th March, 2021. The Company also got RP4 rating from Care Ratings Limited on 24th
June, 2021 indicating overall \ubllny.

UCO bank being the lead banker among all lending banks of UCO, Indian bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) and SBI, had conducted two Joint Lenders meeting on 07/04/2021 and 02/06 2021 respectively and both UCO bank
and Indian Bank has given the company “Holding on operation * to start transactions from their banks

The management is confident that with lenders support and with the above positive devalopmmu. company's restructuring proposnl wlll be accepted in due course and company will be able to restructure its bank loan and
repay its all dues. Considening all these arc under implementation, active consi and company being fully op R pany's financial h.as been prepared on going concem basis.
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46 Capital Management:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

A,

For the purpose of the Company's capital

equity includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share holders, including capital reserve and net debt includes

interest bearing loans and borowings except cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order 1o

support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requi
accruals, lang term borrowings and shost term borrowings. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

In order to achicve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants

requirements.

Borrowings

Less: Current investments

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Net Debt

(b) Equity
(c) Equity and Net Debt (a+h)

Gearing Ratio (a/c)

Dividend

Equity Shares
Final dividend

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Cumulative Dividend Accrued

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
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Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
315t March, 2021 315t March, 2020

31,343.80 2746611

330.61 125.76

31,013,19 27,340.36

(5,374.67) 1,877.18
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47 arnin

n
(a)
()
(e}
()

(I
(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)

rsh EPS
Basic
Face value of equity shares

Profit attributable to equity sharchold:
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
Weighted average earning per share (basic and diluted)

Diluted
Face value of equity shares
Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
Weighted average eaming per share (basic and diluted)

48 Asets Pledged as Security

The carrying amount of Assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are =

Current

Trade Receivables
Inventories
Biological Assets

Total Current Assets Pledped as Security

Non Current

Property Plant & Equipments
Total Non Current Assets Pledged as Secunity

Total Assets Pledged as securities

49 Non-current assets held for sale

The Company, in financial year 2020-21, has entered into an agreement for transfer of lease rights in Nurbong Tea Estate which is subject to clearance from the banks. Also, the Company has entered into a tripartite agreement with D. K.

Industries and Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Pvt. Ltd., for the sale of ratanpur tea estate which is subject to approval from R

2020-11 2019-20
10.00 10.00
(83,52,72,032) (3.81,39,75,132)
3,28,53,847 328533847
(25.42) (116.09)
10.00 10,00
(83,52,72,032) (3,81,39.75,132)
3,56,52 451 3,28,53,847
(23.43) (116.09)
Rs. in Lakhs
As at Asat
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
40292 27339
2814 46 2,691 64
221.81 -
3,439.19 296503
38,119 41,887
38,119 4 L&
41,558 44 852

Pursuant to the above, Property Plant & Equipments installed in the Nurbong Tea Estate and Ratanpur Tea Estate, have been reclassified from “Property, plant and equipment”’ to “Non-current assets held for sale™ amounting to Rs 1587 Lacs
and Rs 1620 Lacs respectively,

50  Previous year figures are regrouped / rearranged wi
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For sake of better visibility, the unsigned version of Note 4 to Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31.03.2021 is attached.

DARJEELING ORGANIC TEA ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

04. Property Plant and Equipment (InRs.)
Description Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation /Amortisation Impairment of Assets Net Block
Transfer to Transfer to
Addition non-current non-current Transfer to non-
As at during the Sales/ assets held for As at As at For the Sales/ assets held for As at As at For the Period Reversal current assets As at As at As at
01-04-2020 9 Disposals 31-03-2021 01-04-2020 Period Disposals 31-03-2021 01-04-2020 during the Year | held for sale 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
year sale (refer note sale (refer note
(refer note 49)
49) 49)
Freehold Land 1,43,74,87,931 49,254 - 24,01,05,985 1,19,74,31,200 - - - - - 59,48,17,430 - - 14,39,31,465 45,08,85,965 74,65,45,235 84,26,70,501
Plantations/ Bearer Plants 4,34,52,43,798 6,35,166 - 35,49,65,916 3,99,09,13,049 23,52,78,880 2,61,31,960 - 2,29,85,002 23,84,25,839 | 2,63,74,44,113 - - 23,34,16,652 | 2,40,40,27,461 | 1,34,84,59,749 1,47,25,20,804
Leasehold Land 2,68,99,24,518 8,83,095 - 22,08,00,012 2,47,00,07,601 - - - - - 1,72,91,69,641 - - 16,29,80,254 | 1,56,61,89,387 90,38,18,214 96,07,54,878
Buildings 2,17,83,76,288 58,05,650 - 24,27,06,569 1,94,14,75,369 20,47,99,335 1,92,59,356 - 2,52,80,722 19,87,77,969 | 1,28,35,10,231 - - 15,18,52,379 | 1,13,16,57,852 61,10,39,547 69,00,66,722
Plant and Equipments 61,21,22,908 22,10,528 29,88,077 1,17,88,074 59,95,57,286 16,50,26,732 1,53,89,219 12,89,042 29,40,659 17,61,86,250 23,56,81,488 - 11,95,771 66,11,260 22,78,74,457 19,54,96,578 21,14,14,688
Furniture and Fixtures 1,96,58,784 - 2,88,500 4,58,772 1,89,11,512 1,19,89,801 15,41,386 1,95,726 3,05,847 1,30,29,615 16,92,338 - - 1,20,062 15,72,276 43,09,621 59,76,645
Vehicles 2,79,44,471 - 90,34,678 24,51,521 1,64,58,272 1,99,26,982 10,58,886 68,31,621 18,02,441 1,23,51,807 31,02,100 - 95,003 4,65,332 25,41,764 15,64,700 49,15,389
Computer 73,23,939 6,80,063 - 2,43,219 77,60,782 67,60,173 2,88,323 - 1,35,407 69,13,090 2,00,353 - - 29,133 1,71,220 6,76,472 3,63,412
Total 11,31,80,82,638 1,02,63,756 1,23,11,255 1,07,35,20,068 | 10,24,25,15,070 64,37,81,904 6,36,69,132 83,16,389 5,34,50,077 64,56,84,570 | 6,48,56,17,696 - 12,90,774 69,94,06,537 | 5,78,49,20,384 | 3,81,19,10,116 | 4,18,86,83,038
04A. Intangible Assets
Description Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation /Amortisation Impairment of Assets Net Block
Transfer to Transfer to
Addition non-current non-current Transfer to non-
As at during the Sales/ assets held for As at As at For the Sales/ assets held for As at As at For the Period Reversal current assets As at As at As at
01-04-2020 9 Disposals 31-03-2021 01-04-2020 Period Disposals 31-03-2021 01-04-2020 during the Year | held for sale 31-03-2021 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
year sale (refer note sale (refer note
(refer note 49)
49) 49)
Computer Softwares 84,30,003 32,70,400 - 1,10,000 1,15,90,403 6,52,647 9,42,570 - 2,873 15,92,344 10,07,574 - - 81,269 9,26,306 90,71,753 67,69,782
Total 84,30,003 32,70,400 - 1,10,000 1,15,90,403 6,52,647 9,42,570 - 2,873 15,92,344 10,07,574 - - 81,269 9,26,306 90,71,753 67,69,782
05. Capital Work In Progress
" . Transfer to
Description As at dﬁr[i‘:m?hne d;::]Ac::{e non-current Capitalized As at As at
it 01-04-2020 9 9 assets held for | during the year | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2020
year year
sale (refer note
Bearer Plants 6,35,166 - - - 6,35,166 - 6,35,166
Other Capital Work In Progres| 53,84,642 45,58,381 - - 58,54,904 40,88,118 53,84,642
Total 60,19,808 45,58,381 - - 64,90,070 40,88,118 60,19,808
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
04. Property Plant and Equipment (InRs.)
Description Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation /Amortisation Impairment of Assets Net Block
Addition
As at during the Sales/ As at As at For the Period Sales/ As at As at For the Period Reversal As at As at As at
01-04-2019 vegar Disposals 31-03-2020 01-04-2019 Disposals 31-03-2020 01-04-2019 during the Year| 31-03-2020 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
Freehold Land 1,35,01,78,258 8,73,09,673 - 1,43,74,87,931 - - - - - 59,48,17,430 - 59,48,17,430 84,26,70,501 1,35,01,78,258
Plantations/ Bearer Plants 3,94,28,58,240 | 40,23,85,558 - 4,34,52,43,798 17,45,58,864 6,07,20,017 - 23,52,78,880 - 2,63,74,44,113 - 2,63,74,44,113 | 1,47,25,20,804 | 3,76,82,99,376
Leasehold Land 2,68,02,55,651 96,68,867 - 2,68,99,24,518 - - - - - 1,72,91,69,641 - 1,72,91,69,641 96,07,54,878 | 2,68,02,55,651
Buildings 2,17,79,87,040 3,89,248 - 2,17,83,76,288 14,83,95,138 5,64,04,197 - 20,47,99,335 - 1,28,35,10,231 - 1,28,35,10,231 69,00,66,722 | 2,02,95,91,901
Plant and Equipments 75,36,12,897 1,13,77,011 | 15,28,66,999 61,21,22,908 16,90,93,108 3,74,92,696 | 4,15,59,072 16,50,26,732 - 23,56,81,488 - 23,56,81,488 21,14,14,688 58,45,19,789
Furniture and Fixtures 1,96,58,784 - - 1,96,58,784 93,16,489 26,73,312 - 1,19,89,801 - 16,92,338 - 16,92,338 59,76,645 1,03,42,295
Vehicles 2,92,85,719 - 13,41,248 2,79,44,471 1,74,55,328 31,75,065 7,03,410 1,99,26,982 - 31,02,100 - 31,02,100 49,15,389 1,18,30,391
Computer 73,58,938 - 34,999 73,23,939 58,46,506 9,45,446 31,779 67,60,173 - 2,00,353 - 2,00,353 3,63,412 15,12,431
Total 10,96,11,95,527 | 51,11,30,357 | 15,42,43,246 | 11,31,80,82,638 52,46,65,433 16,14,10,732 4,22,94,261 64,37,81,904 - 6,48,56,17,696 - 6,48,56,17,696 4,18,86,83,038 10,43,65,30,094




For sake of better visibility, the unsigned version of Note 4 to Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31.03.2021 is attached.

04A. Intangible Assets

Description Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation /Amortisation Impairment of Assets Net Block
As at dﬁr[i‘:gi?hne _Sales/ As at As at For the Period _Sales/ As at As at For the Period Reversal As at As at As at
01-04-2019 vear Disposals 31-03-2020 01-04-2019 Disposals 31-03-2020 01-04-2019 during the Year| 31-03-2020 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
Computer Softwares 37,98,003 46,32,000 - 84,30,003 2,26,067 4,26,580 - 6,52,647 - 10,07,574 - 10,07,574 67,69,782 35,71,936
Total 37,98,003 46,32,000 - 84,30,003 2,26,067 4,26,580 - 6,52,647 - 10,07,574 - 10,07,574 67,69,782 35,71,936

05. Capital Work In Progress

Addition Trf Adj.

Description As at during the during the Capitalized As at As at
P 01-04-2019 9 9 during the year | 31-03-2020 | 31-03-2019
vear vear
Bearer Plants 402385556 |  6,35,166 - | 402385556 6,35,166 | 40,23,85,556
Other Capital Work In Progres| ~ 9,18,84,036 |  53,84,642 - 9,18,84,036 53,84,642 | 9,18,84,036
Total 49,42,69,592 60,19,808 - 49,42,69,592 60,19,808 49,42,69,592

Other Notes to Note No 04 to 05
A. Disclosures for Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) ,Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)
A1. Refer Note No 48 for information on Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets pledged as security by the Company.

A2. During the year 19-20, the Company had done impairment of assets (after providing the depreciation) to the extent of Rs. 64866.25 Lakhs, based on valuation of Tea Gardens done by M/s Vestian Global Workplace Services Pvt. Ltd., a world
renowned valuer. The valuer had done the valuation on the basis of Market Value as intended to mean “the estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

The valuation of the subject property has been done under the following scenarios-
« Valuation of Property (Tea Garden) as is where is basis.
« Valuation of Property assuming 15% of area is available for Tea-Tourism Purposes
The Company has considered valuation of property only as a tea estate without considering value of land available for Tea-Tourism purpose.
The valuation so done was proportionately allocated to all heads of Fixed Assets as on 31.03.2020 and accordingly the excess of book value over market value was charged as impairment.

As on 31.03.2020, the Company had an amount of Rs. 39151.07 Lakhs in Capital Reserve which was transferred from Revaluation Reserve during Ind As transition. The impairment loss was first adjusted with Capital Reserve and excess was
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss account.

A3. The amortisation expense of intangible assets have been included under ‘Depreciation and amortization expense’ in Statement of Profit and Loss.

A4. The title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except for Tea Estate Land and Factory at Jamguri & Ratanpur.

A5. During the year 2020-21, the company has entered into a tripartite agreement with D. K. Industries and Ratanpur Land & Tea Estates Pvt. Ltd., for the sale of ratanpur tea estate which is subject to approval from Revenue department of The
Government of Assam.

A6. During the year 2020-21, the company has entered into an agreement for transfer of lease rights in Nurbong Tea Estate which is subject to clearance from the banks.
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